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General
DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors of 1GI General Insurance Limited (“the Company”) take pleasure in presenting the
annual report of your Company, twogether with the audited Doancial statements for the year ended

December 31, 2019,
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITES OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as a public limited company on November 18, 2016 under the
Companics Ordinance 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The objects of the Company include
general msurance services in spheres of Fire, Marine, Motor, Health and Miscellaneous including
engincering and travel as well as general takaful services, which the Company commenced in July

2017,
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Conventional [nsurance Business

On conventional business side, the Company has written gross premium of Rs 5,177 million
compared with Rs 4.4]7 million during 2018 t.e. 17% higher than last year. The net premium
revenue stood at Rs 2,396 million compared to Rs 2,236 million in the corresponding period.

The Company incurred net claims of Rs 1,203 million during the year compared to Rs 1,143
million in the corresponding period. The Company also added Rs 0.6 million to its premium
deficiency reserve on its health business comparted to Rs 20.5 million in the corresponding period.

Net commission expense stood at Rs 36 million compared to Rs 66 million during last year.
Investment and other income posted a strong growth and grew by Rs 243 million during the year.

Window Takaful Operations

The Company has written gross contribution of Rs 435 million compared to Rs 190 million in the
corresponding period and earned Rs 50 million from its Takatul operations compared to that of Rs

24 million in the corresponding period.

As a result, the Company generated profit before tax of Rs 807 million with profit after tax of Rs
578 million during the year compared to Rs 531 million and Rs 368 million respectively in the

corresponding period.

Larnigs per share (EPS) ot the Company stood at Rs 2.99 per share as compared to Rs 1.95 per
share in corresponding period.
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SEGMENTS AT A GLANCE

FIRE

Gross Premium written was Rs 1,897 million compared to Rs 1,203 mullion during 201¥. Net
Premium Earned and Net claims were Rs 183 million and Rs 23 million respectively compared to
Rs 175 million and Rs 98 million respectively during 2018. This resulted in underwriting loss of
Rs 64 million compared to underwriting loss of Rs 36 million during 2018.

MARINE, AVIATION AND TRANSPORT

Marine business gross written premium was Rs 629 million in 2018 compared to Rs 528 million
during 2018, Net Premium Earned and Net claims were Rs 253 million and Rs 82 respectively
compared 10 Rs 527 million and Rs 89 million respectively during 2018. This resulted in
underwriting profit of Rs 97 million compared to Rs 107 million during 2018.

MOTOR

Motor business gross Premium was Rs 1,548 million compared to Rs 1,399 million during 2018.
Net Premium Earned and Net claims were Rs 1,406 million and Rs 681 million respectively. This
resulted in underwriting profit of Rs 285 million compared to Rs 279 million during 2018.

HEALTH

Gross Premium was Rs 353 million compared to Rs 368 million during 2018. Net Premium Earned
and Net claims were Rs 361 million and Rs 337 respectively. During the year, the Company has
recorded premium deftciency reserve amounting to Rs 0.6 million. This resulted in underwrnting
loss of Rs 58 million.

MISCELLANEQOUS

Miscellaneous scgment includes Engineering and Contractor’s All Risk Insurance, Travel, Bond
and Pecuniary lines of business. During the year, this business line has written gross premium of
Rs 751 million compared to Rs 920 million during 2018, Net premium carned and net clatms
amounted to Rs 193 miltion and Rs 81 million respectively with underwriting loss of Rs 27 million,
CLAIMS

QOur focus Is on swift settlement of claims. For this purpose, the Company has taken a number of
initiatives ro further reduce the claims settlement turnaround time.

Incurred loss rato remained 50% during the year compared (o 51% m 2018,
RE-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company follows a policy of risk optimization through a carefully designed program of re-
insurance. The Comnpany believe in building partnerships with our clients to provide them a long
term risk management solution by using our insurance expertise, a state of the art technology
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platform and a focused risk management service that helps our clients understand the hazards that
may threaten their businesses and determine cost-effective loss prevention solutions.

APPROPRIATIONS

The Board of Dircctors has proposed final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2019 of Rs
0.78 per share (2018: Rs 1.06 per share), amounting to Rs 150 million (201&: Rs 203 million). This
is in addition to accumulated interim dividend of Rs 1.61 per share (2018: Nil) amounting to Rs
310 million (2018: Nil) declared and disbursed during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

During the year 2019, meetings of the board of directors were held on timely basis. Attendance by
each director in the meetings held was as follows:

Attendance
Sved Hyder Ali 4
Shamim Ahmad Khan 3
Syed Hasnain Al 4
Tahir Masaud (CEQ) 4
Sajjad Itikhar 4
Faisal Khan 4

_eave of absence was granted to director who could not attend one of the Board meetings.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board of Directors approved Company's transactions made with Assoctated Companies /
Related parties. All the transactions executed with related parties were on commercial terms and

conditions.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY

The Company actively manages and monitors the matching of its asset positions against its
commitments, together with diversification and credit quality of its investments against established

targets,

The Company's prnnary source of funds is cash provided by operating activities i.e. insurance
business. Net operating cash flows have also been invested 10 gencrale investuient itconie {ot tic
Company. Net cash flows of the Company are utilized for business commitments, expansions and
for dividend payout to the shareholder.

INSURER'S FINANCIAL STRENGTH RATING
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (Private) Limited (PACRA) and VIS Credit Rating Company
Limited (JCR) have assigned your Company an “[nsurer Financial Strength” ([FS) Rating of “AA™
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{Double A). IFS rating of “AA™ (Double A) denotes a very strong capacity to meet policyholder
and contractual obligations, modest risk factors, and the expectation that the impact of any adverse

business and cconomic factors will be very limited.

RISK MITIGATION

The senior management team, led by the Chief Executive Officer 1s responsible for risk mitigation
measures. The Company’s proactive risk management program helps in identifying and
respondimg to changing business and regulatory requirements on timely basis.

MATERIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes during the vear which would affect financial position of
Company.
CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has adopted a staterment of ethics and business practices. The Code of Conduct 1s signed
by all the employees undertaking that they subscribed to high ethical values. All our operational
activities are cairied out in a transparent manner in accordance with the code of ethics.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is aware of ils corporate social responsibilities and is supporting social sector
organizations in the fields of education, health and environment. The Company also offers
internships all around the year to students from colleges and universities.

[SO CERTIFICATION AND ITS VALUE TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Your Company continties to focus on improving productivity and efficiency in its operations and
during the year has upgraded tts Quality Management Certification to ISO 9001:2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

- The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present the state of its
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity, fairly.

- Proper bouks of accounts have been maintaed by the Company.

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the Companics Ordinance
[984 and International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan. Any
departures therefrom have been adequately disclosed and explained;
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- The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

- There are no doubts on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

- Therc has becn no matenal departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations:

- Key operating and financial data is separately annexed with the report.
- Outstanding taxes and duttes are given in the financial statements.

- The value of investments of based on audited accounts of the respective funds were as follows:

Provident fund as at June 30, 2017 - Rs 74.2 million
Gratuity fund as at December 31, 2016 - Rs 50.4 million

- The statement of pattern of shareholding in the Company as on December 31, 2019 is as
follows:

tiolding Co
IGI Holdings Limited 191,838,394

Directors

Sved Hyder Ali [

Mr Tahir Masaud (Chief Lxecutive Officer) 1

My Sajjad Iftikhar I

Syed Hasnam Al 1

Mr Shamim Ahmed Khan 1

Mr Faisal Khan |
Total 191,838,400

The directors are holding one share each of the Company as nominee of IGI Holdings.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE UNDLER SECTION 46(6) OI' TIIE INSURANCE
ORDINANCE 2000

The directors hercby certity that i their opinion:
- the annual statutory accounts of the company annexed hereto have been drawn up in
accordance with the Ordinance and any Rules made thereunder;

- the company has during the period complied with the provisions of the Ordinance and the
Rules made thereunder relating to paid up capital, solvency and reinsurance arrangements; and
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as at the date of the statement, the company continues to be in compliance with the provisions
of the Ordinance and the Rules made thereunder relating to paid up capital, solvency and

relsurance arran gements.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the year, the Company has started its tracker operations with “{GJ Drive” brand name, the
Board and management are confident that it will enhance the customer experience of our motor

INSUrance customers.

The Board and management of your Company arec committed in making significant investment in
inodern technetogy and infrastructure enabling the Company to improve its efficiencies and level

of customer service.,

The Board also believes that there is a professional team and modern infrastructure to deliver
sustainable and profitable growth in the future.

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s AF Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants have retire and offer
themiselves for reappointment. They have confirmed achieving satisfactory rating by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and compliance with the Guidelines on the Code of
Ethics of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) as adopted by JCAP.

The Board of Directors have recommended their reappointment as Auditors of the Company for
the year ending December 31, 2020, at a fee to be mutually agreed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to thank our customers for their loyalty and trust. We also value the support and
patronage extended by our business parters and all stakeholders. We appreciate the dedicated and

sincere efforts of our employees.

We would also like to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their

continued guidance.

For and on behalf ot the Board

Sl f/{%& M"

Shamim Ahmad Khan Tahir Masaud

Chairman Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of 1G] General Insurance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed Anancial statements of 1IG1 General Insurance Limited (the Company),
which compnse the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financizl statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of finaneial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the cash flow statement together with the notes forming pant thereof, conform with the accounting nnd
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of Company's affairs as at December 31, 2019 and of the total
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does naot include the finanecial statements and our auditor’s report
therean.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Insurance Ordinance, 2c00 and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due e fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abou! whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

»  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opimon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
CONCern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

D
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b) the statement of inancial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawm up in

conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), and are in
agreement with the books of account;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the company's business; and;

d) no Zakar was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XV1I1 of 1680).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Noman Abbas Sheikh.

o 5 ¢,

Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Dated: March 19, 2020



|Gl GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

Contingencies and commitmeants 22

The annexed notes 1 1o 41 form an integral part of these financial slalements.

Mo el D iy

Chairman Director Director Chiel Executive OHicer
o

Note 2019 2018 2017
' Restated Restated
cesee—eeeeeeee|Rupees in "000)
Assets
Propery and equipment 5 840,747 315619 274627
| Inlangible assets [ 18,163 3694 5183
Investment propenies 7 376,995 356,950 303.573
Invastments
l - Equily securitles 8 487 577 225821 -
- Government securilies g 2,158,874 1,614,142 a2
- Debt securities 10 194 0256 - -
- Term deposits 71 300,000 525,000 960,000
. Loans and other recewvables 12 380,338 286,802 138,741
insurance / relnsurance recelvables 13 1,424 B67 1,101,170 701,814
Reinsurance recoveries agains! outstanding claims 24 1,012 984 854,041 723,743
l Salvage recoveries accrued 58,885 46,148 78,888
Deferred commission expensa 25 178 261 1563.419 127,569
Tax recoverable 72478 | 65,301 137,883
Prepaymenls 15 1,022,756 645177 508 B892
I Cash and bank 16 133,110 477,161 | 1,607,742 |
B.6581,080 6,870,535 5, 20677
Tolal assets of Window Takaful Operations - operator's lund 247 550 142,096 64,186
I Total assets 5.028,616 7012631 __5.854,863
e e y— -
Equity and liabilities
I Capital and reserves attributable to Company’s equity holders
Authonsed capltal
250,000,000 (2018. 250,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 2,500,000 2 500,000 2,500,000
. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
191,839,400 (2018; 191,838,400) ardinary shares of Rs 10 sach 1,918,384 1,618,384 1.501.000
Proposed shares 1o be issued under scheme of arrangement - - 417 384
I Unappropriated profit 543,728 464 563 258,581
Total aquity 2482 112 2,382,047 2.177.665
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - ned of fax 17 313,209 -
l Liabilities
Underwriting provisions
l Outstanding claims including IBNR 24 [[7512.227 7314812 | |[ 1.225,184
Unesamed premiwm reserves 23 1,860,409 | 1,503,062 1,185,547
Premium deficiency reserve 21,11 20,503 -
Uneamed relnsurance commission 25 174 581 120,833 101,679
l Ralirement benafil obligations 14 18,383 21,217 12,419
Borrowings 18 177,518 118,881 78,235
Premium racewved in advance 282 | 484 536
I Insurance [ reinsurance payables 18 1,299,750 703,314 347 BB3
Deferrad laxation 20 175,104 21587 || 23,3166
Other creditors and accruals 21 786,731 733.932 684,324 "
l T6.027.057 | | 4558725 | | 3,660,173
Tolal abilities of Window Takaful Operations - operator's funid | 128141 70,853 16.725
Total liabilities 6,153,198 4 B26 684 3676.898
l Total equity and liabilities 8,928 610 7.012.611 5.854.883



I1GI GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OECEMBER 31, 2019

Mote 20149 2018
- (Rupees in '000)—
Restated
23 2,306,793 2,236,397

MNet insurance premium

Met insurance claims 24 {1.203.473) (1,142,718}
Premium deficiency {608) {20,503}
Met commission expense 25 {36,398) {66,246)
Insyrance claims and acquisition expanses (1,240,479) (1,220,465)
tlanagement expenses 26 (923.191) (755,341}
Underwriting results 233,123 251,581
Investment incomea 27 465 848 134 816
Fental income 30,274 31,766
Other income 28 49,964 136, 488
Other expenses 29 (28,168} (42 B03)
Result of operating activities 750,141 512.058
Finance costs {14,062) (5,168)
Profit from window takaful operabions 70,818 23677
Profit before tax 306, 8G7 530,567
|ncome tax expanse a0 {233,740) {157,232)
Profit after tax 573,157 373,335
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
-Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations-net of 1ax 5259 {5,260)
Total comprehensive income 578,416 I68.045
31 2.99 1.95

Earnings per share - Rupees
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements

i

(2]

- 4

Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer




IGI GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Proposed ]
lssued, ‘ '
subscribed sl ;::r Unappoo- Total
and pdd«_:p | | soaens ot pristed profit
ghiare capdal | armangement
(Rupees in 000}
Balance as at January 1, 2018 as previously reported 1,501,000 417,384 172,622 2.081.006
Effecl of change in accounting policy - (note 3.2) BG 959 86,958
Balance as at January 01, 2018 (restated) 1,501,000 417,384 258,581 2,177,865
Brofit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 2018 - restated | E = 373,335 | [ 373335
Other comprehensive loss for the year s> | - (5.280) {5.280)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended - 368,045 368,045
December 31, 2018 - restated
Transactions with owners - direclly recognised in equity
Issuance of shares under scheme of arrangement 417,384 {417,384) -
Final dividend at the rate of Rs. D.85 per share for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2017 declared on 27ih April, 2018 - g (163,063)  (163,063)
417 384 (417,384} [163,083) (163,083)
Balance as at December 31, 2018 (restaled) 1,918 384 454,663 2382 047
Profit afler taxation for the year ended December 31, 2019 - 573,157 573,157
Olher comprehansiva income lor the year - 5,259 5,258
Total comprehensive income for the year ended Dacember 31, 2019 - 578 416 578416
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of properly and egquipmani on
account of incremental depreciation - net of lax (note 17) - 14,098 14,008
Transactions with owners - directly recognised in aquity
Final dividend at the rale of Rs. 1.08 per share for year ended
December 31, 2018 declared on 23rd April, 2018 {203,348) (203,349
Interim dividend 3t the rate of Rs 1.04 per share for year ending
December 31, 2018 declared on 23¢d Augusl, 2018 - (2000007  (200,000)
Interim dividend at the rate of Re. 0.57 per share for year ending
December 31, 2018 declared on 24th Oclober, 2019 (1100000  ({110,000)
- (513,348) (513,329)
Balance as at December 31, 2019 1!91%354 543,728 2,462,112
The annexed notes 1 10 41 form an integral part of these financial statements
L Tto ’ [ X
Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer



IG! GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note 2018 2018
— [Rupees in "000) —-
Restated

OPERATING CASH FLOWS
Underwriting activities

Pramiums received 5,021,878 4,312,361

Remsurance premiums paid (2.354 . 400) (1.853.523)

Ctaims paid (1,617,607) (1.620,722)

Reinsurance and olher recovenes recaived 452 606 436,336

Commissions paid (541,528) (477 B84)

Commissions received 443 603 435423
Net cash inflow from underwriting activities 1404, 552 1,231,991
Other operating activities

Income tax paid (68,863} {64,270)

Operating receipls / (paymenls) nel 27,918 {104,283)

General managemeant expenses paid {913,574} {7680.258)
Net cash outflow on operating activities {952,521} (968,811)
Total cash inflow from all operating activities 452 0 263,180
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Frofil received 335 364 152,688
Fayments for investments (T23677) (1,669,139)
Fed capilal expenditure - cwned (7B 121) (49.618)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets - owned 11,844 20,805
Total cash outflow on investing activities {454 530) (1,545.264)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid {513,349) (163,063)
Financial charges pald {14,082) (5,166)
Repayment of liability against right-of-use assels (39,081} (15,266)
Total cash outflow from financing activities {566 492) {183,497)
Net cash outilow on all activities (568.051) (1,465.581)
Cash and cash equivalenls at beginning of the year 1,002,181 2467 742
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16.2 433110 1EQII'.'I-2 161

The annexed noles 1 4o 41 form an ntegral part of these financial statemants.

W,
o dadd o

Chairman Director Director Chief Executive Officer
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IGI GEMERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Reconciliation to statement of comprehensive income

Cperating cash flows

Depraciation and amartisation expanse
Depreciation on leasad assels

Financial charges

(Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Falr value gain on investiment properties
Incragse In assets other than cash
Inerease in liabilities other than borrowings
Return on bank balances

Other investment income

Profit from window takaful operalions - net of lax

Profit afler tax

The annexed nolas 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial stalements.

ST

2019 2018
—~- {Rupees in 000} —
Restated
452031 263 180
(60 ,857) {45,B62)
{21,424) (18,397}
(14,062) (5,168)
7,091 5015
20,045 53,377
966,027 708,941
(1,281,723) (741,378)
90,051 63,835
375,797 70,981
50,281 16,811
573,157 73,335

Chairman Directar

Chief Executive Officér



IGI GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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1.2

1.3
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LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

|G! Gereral Insurance Limited ("the Company"). 8 Packages Group Company, was incorporated as a public limited
company on November 18, 2016 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act 2017), The registered
office of the Company is situaled al Tth floor, The Forum, Sulle No. 701-T13, G-20, Block &, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton,
Karachi. The cbjectives of the Company include providing general insurance services (mainly in the sphere of Fire.
Masne, Motor. Health and Miscellaneous) and general takaful services (mainly in the sphere of Fire, Marine, Molor,
Heallh and Misceilaneous)

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of 1GI Holdings Limited ("Holding Company"} and had been formed 1o
facilitate the transfer of general Insurance segment of 1GI Insurance Limited to the Company under the Schema of
Arrangement filed with the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC). The transfer of general insurance business and
relaled assets and liabilities from 1G! Insurance Limited to he Company had been made effective from January 31,
2017, which nhad been sanclioned by SHC vide Order daled December 16, 2017 The insurance license was
transferred to the Company from IG! Insurance Limiled with effect from January 16, 2018,

The Company commenced ils Window Takaful Operalions with effect from July 1, 2017 after getting the approval from
the SECP.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These fnancial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporing slandards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporing standards comprise of:

- Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (LASE)
as are notified under the Companias Acl, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives lssued under the Companies Acl, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules
2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and Takaful Rules, 2012,

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
the Insurance Rules, 2017, the Insurance Accounting Regulalions. 2017 and the Takaful rules, 2012 shall prevail,

In terms of the requirements of the Takaful Rules, 2012, read with the SECP Circular 25 of 2015 daled July 9, 2015,
the assels, liabilities and profit and loss of the Operalor Fund of the Window Takaful Operalions of the Company have
been presanted as a single line item In the statemant of financial posibon and stalement of comprehensive income of
the Company respectively,

A separgte sel of financial statements of the Window Takalul Operations has been annexed lo these financlal
statements as per the requirements of the Takalul Rules, 2012.

Basis of measurement

These financial stalemenis have been prepared under the hislorical cosl convention excepl for cerlain staff retirementd
benefits which are carried at present value of the defined benefit cbligation less fair value of plan assels, property and
equipment and investment properies which are camed al fair value and certain investments which are camied al
market valua,

Functional and presentation currency

lems included In these financial slalemeants are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates. These financial statemenls are presenied in Pakistani rupees, which is the Company’s
funchional and presentation currency

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that are effective in
tha current year:

The Company has applied the following standards for the first ime for their accounting year commencing January 1,
2019

Heo
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Effective from January 1, 2019, the Company has adopled IFRS 16: 'Leases' which has replaced IAS 17, Yleases.’ The
slandard addresses recognition and measurement of leases for both lessor and lessee The impacts of adoption of
IFRS 16 are further given in note 3.1 lo these financial stalements.

iIFRS 8 Financial Ingtruments’ and amendmenl (effective for period ending on or after June 30, 2019). IFRS § replaces
the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and measuramant of financial instruments, a new expacted cradit losses model for
caleulating impairment on financial assets and new general hedge accounting requiremants. It also carried forward the
guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39,

Further, IFRS 4 provides two alternalive options in relalion to application of IFRS 9 for entities issuing cantracts within
the scope of IFRS 4, notably a temporary exemption and an overay approach. The temporary exemplion enables
eligible entities 1o defer the implementation date of IFRS 8. The overlay approach allows an enlity applying IFRS 8 from
the effective dale to remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismalches that may occur from
applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is applied. The Company has adopled the temporary exemplion which allows the
Company to defer the application of IFRS 9 until December 31, 2021.

For the companies adopling the temporary exemption, the IFRS 4 requires cerlain disciosures which have been
disclosed as in note 2.4.2 1,

Temporary axamption from application of IFRS 8

As an insurance company, the management has opled lemporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as allowed
by Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are predominantly connected wilh
insurance. Addillonal disclosures, as required by the IASB, for being eligible to apply the temporary exemption from the
appiication of IFRS 9 are given below.

Fair value of financial assets as at December 31, 2019 and change in the fair values during the year ended
December 31, 2019

Financial assets with contractual cash flows that meet 2018
the SPPI criteria, excluding those held for trading Rs in 000
Palkistan Investment Bonds - Held to matunity {refer nole 8)
Opening lair value 319,364
Additions f (disposals) during the year (4,591)
Increase [ (decrease) in fair value 6,152
Closing fair value 320,925

There are cerain other standards, amendments and interpretations thal are mandatory lor the Company’s accounting
periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2019 but are considered not lo be relevant or do nol have any significani effect
on the Company's operations and are, therefore, nol detailed in these financiai statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments lo published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet
effective:

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect lo the accounfing and reporting
standards would be efective for the dates mentioned below against the respective standards, amendments or
interpretations;

Effective date
Standards, amendments or interpretations {period beginning on or after)
- IAS 1 - "Presentafion of financial statements’ (amendments) January 1, 2020
- IAS 8 - ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and efrors ’ January 1, 2020

(amendmants)

The management Is In the precess of assessing the impact of these amendments on the financal statements of the
Company.

There are cerlain other new and amended slandards, interprefations and amendments that are mandatory for the
Company's accounting penod beginning on or after January 1. 2020, but are consldered not to be relevant or will not
hava any significani effect on the Company's operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

(3
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopied in preparation of the financial statements are sel oul below. Accounting
policies relaling lo Window Takaful Operations are disclosed in 3 separale financial statements of Window Takaful
Operations which haye been annexed 1o these financial statemenls The accounting policies have been consistently
applied for all the years presented except for the changes disclosed in notes 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 lo these financial
siatements

‘Effective from January 1, 2019, the Company has adopled IFRS 16, “Leases” which replaces existing guidance on
accouniing for leases, Including |1AS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whelher an arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-
15 'Operating Leases- Incentive and SIC-27 'Evaluating the substance of transactions invoiving the legal form of a
Lease’. IFRS 18 introduces a single, on balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a righl-
of-use asset representing Its right-of-use of the underlying asset and a lease lability representing its obligations to
make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the currenl standard ie. lessors continue 1o classify leases
as finance or operaling leases. During the year the Company has changed its accounting policy with respect lo finance
leases in accordance with IFRS 16 - “Leases”.

For leases previously classified as finance leases the Company recognised the carrying amount of the lease assets
and lease liabilily immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets and the lease labiiity
al the date of initial application, The measurement principles of IFRS 18 are applied only afler that date The
rameasurements to the lease liabilities are recognised as adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately
afler the date of inltial application as disclosed in pote 3.1.1

Impact of IFRS 16 December | January 1,
31,2018 | | Chanee 2019
e | 171+ LY T TR 111 et —
Motor vehicles - leased* 117170 !11?1?0! -
Righl-of-use assels _ - 117,170 11?;1 70
- —_—

*Represents finance leased arrangemeant which has now been classified as right of-use-assels.
The revised accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.24 1o these financial statemants.

On adoplion of IFRS 18, the Company has recognised labilities in respect of leases which had previously been
classified as operating leases under IAS 17 excepl for certain short term leases in accordance with IFRS 16. These
lisbiiities were inifially measured at the present value of lhe remaining lease paymenis, discounted using the
Company's incremental waighted average borrowing rate of 12.80% per annum as of January 1, 2019. The lease
liability s subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The adoption of IFRS 16
had not impact on the prior year balances as all of the leases of the Company enlered in prior years were short-term in
nature; The current year impact of [FRS 16 mainly represents effecl of a long-term rental arrangement entered into
during the currenl year.

On adoption of IFRS 18, the associated right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal lo the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of prepaid lease payments recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application.

The nght-of-use assets recognised subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the Initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any nitial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-Use sssets are depreciated on a siraight line basis over the lease term as this melhod most

closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits, The rght-of-use assets are reduced
by impairmenl losses, if any, and adjusted for cerain remeasurements of lease liability

The recognised nght-of-use assats and lease liability recognised relate 10 the following type of asset:

Dacember 2019
{Rupees in ‘000)

Building - right of use asset 26,400
Total lease habilily recognised 25,745

The expense relating to the aforementioned leases amounts 1o Rs 0.660 million.
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December 2019
{Rupees in "000)
The effects of this change in accounting policy are as follows:
Impact on statement of financial position
Increase in right-of-use assels 26,400
Decrease in prepayments (1,980)
Increase in lax recoverable 384
Increase in total assets 24 804
Increase in bomowings- lease liability agamst right-ol-use assels 25,745
Decrease in net assels 841

Impacl on slatemenl of comprehensive income
Ingrease in finance costs
(Increase) / decrease in managemeanl expenses:

1

- Deprecialion on right-of-use assels 3,300
- Renl, rales and laxes {3,960}
Decrease in profil before tax 1,325
Decrease In lax expanse g4
Decrease in profit aler lax 941
E—— ——
Praclical expedienls applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Company has used lhe following praclical expadients permittad by the
standard:

the use of & single discounl rate lo a portfolic of leases with reasonably similar characleristics;

. reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an altemaltive to performing an impairment
review,

the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at January 1, 2018 as
short-term leases; and

the exclusion of initial direct costs for lhe measurement of the right-ol-use asset at the dale of initial application

The Company has also elecled not to reassess whelher a contract is, or containg a lease at the dale of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Company relled on its arangement made
applying 1AS 17 for determining whethar an arrangement contains a Lease.

During the year, the Company has changed Its accounting policy in respecl of subsequenl measurement of the carrying
smounts of investment properties subseguent to initial recognition. In this respect, the Company has decided o follow
the fair value mode! as allowed under Intemational Accounting Standard “Investment Properly” (1AS 40). In accordance
with the revised policy, investment properties of the Company shall be carried at revalued amount, being thelr falr value
at tha date of the revaluation less any subseguent impairment losses. Previously, the investment properiies were
carried at their cosl lese accumulated deprecialion and accumulatad Impairment losses In fhe opinion of the
management, the revised policy will result in a more realistic reflection of the value of these properties in the statement
of financial position. The fair value changes arising from investmeni properiies have been adjusied in he opening
unappropriated profil net of related defered tax as disclosed below

Above relrospective adjustments have been made in tha statement of financial position and statement ol changes in
equity and comparalives have been reslated as follows:

Decamber January 1, | | December January 1,
31,2017 || Chanee 2018 || 31,2018 || ©hange 2019
{Rupees In '000)
Investment proparies 178,346 124 227 03,573 169,754 187,196 356 850
Deferred taxation asset /
{liability) 13,802 (37.268) {23,366) 32,700 (54.287) {(21.587}
Unappropriated prefil 172.622 86,859 259,581 331,654 132,908 464 563

Had the accounting policy nol been changed, investment properies, deferred laxation and eaming per share would
have been lowar by Rs 216 505 milllon, Rs.62.787 million and Rs. 0.074 {2018 Rs. 187.166 million, Rs 54 287 million
and Rs. 0 198) respectively. The revised accounting policy is disclosed in note 3.15 1o the financial statements

Meo
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During the year, the Company has changed its accounting policy in respect of subssquent measuremeant of the carrying
amounts of bulldings and its related leasehold improvements subsequent to initial recognition. In this respect the
Company has decided lo follow the revaluation mode! as allowed under International Accounling Standard "Property,
Planl and Equipment” (JAS 18). In accordance with the revised policy the bulldings and its related |easehold
improvements of the Company shall be carrled al revalued amount, being their falr value at the date of the revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depracialion and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluation of these assets shall
be carfed out with sufficient regularily to ensure thal the carrying amouni does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair value at the reporting date. Previously, the buildings and its related leasehold
improvements were carried at thelr cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses. In the
apinion of the management, the revised policy will resull in a mare realistic reflection of the value of these assets in the
slatement of financial position. Surplus arising due 1o change in the value of buildings and fts related leasehoid
impravements has been recognised prospectively. The revalualion of these assels resuited in surplus of Rs. 387152
million as at the date ol revaluation.

The revised accounting policy is disclosed in nole 3.16 to the financial stalemenis.

Had the accounting policy not been changed, the property and equipment and deferred taxalion would have been lower
by Rs. 441.279 milion and Rs. 127.871 millon respectively and earning per share would have been higher by Rs.
0.073

Insurance contracts

Insurance conlracts are those contracls where the Company (the insurer) has accepled significant insurance risk from
another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the policy holders il a specified unceriain future avent
(the insured event) adversely affects the policy holders.

The Company enters into fire and property damage, manne, motor, heaith, burglary, loss of cash in transit, Iravel,
parsonal acciden!, engineanng losses and other insurance contracts wilh corporate clienls and individuals residing or
located in Pakistan,

Once a contract has been classilied as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of ils
Iifetime, even i the Insurance risk reduces significantly durnng this penod, unless all rights and liabiliies are
exlinguished or explred,

The Company neflher issues investment contracls nor does it issue insurance contracts with Discretionary Participation
Features (DPF).

Pramium

Premium received / receivable under a policy is recognised as written from the date of attachment of the nsk 1o the
policy to which i relates. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy. premium is
recognised as revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. The portion of premium written relating 1o
ez unexpired period of coverage is recognised as unearned premium by the Company. Thig liability is calculated by
applying 1/24 melhod as specilied in the Insurance Rules, 2017,

Premium income Includes administrative surcharge thal represents documentation and other charges recovered by the
Company from policy holders in respecl of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the premium written restricled lo a
maximum of Rs. 5.000 per poficy.

Receivables under insurance confracls are recognised when due, al the falr value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debls, if any. I there is an objeclive evidence thal lhe receivables are impaired, the Company
reduces (he carrying amounl of the recelvables and recognises that impaimment loss in the stalement of comprehensive
incorme.

Reinsurance ceded

Insurance confracts enlered into by the Company with reinsurers for compensation of losses suffered on insurance
conlracls issued, are reinsurance conlracts. These reinsurance contracts include both facullative and ‘reaty
arrangement contracls,

The Company eniers into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limil the potantial for

losses ansing from cerain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same peried as the
related premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured.

&
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Relnsurance lizbilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies Amounis payable are estimated in a8 manner
consisten! with the related reinsurance contract Reinsurance assels represenl balances due from reinsurance
companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimaled In a manner consistent with the provision for
outsianding claims or sellled claims associaled with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance contract.

Relnsurance assets are nol offset against related insurance liabilities. Incomea or expenses from reinsurance contracls
are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets,

Reinsurance assels or liabilihes are detecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.

The Company assesses ils reinsurance assels for impaimment on the reporting date. If there is an objective evidence
that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance assel to ils
recoverable amount and recognises that impalrment loss in the slatement of comprehensive income.

Claims expense

General insurance claims include all claims occurnng during the year. whether reporied or nol, related nternal and
external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and seftlement of claims, a reduciion for the
value of salvage and other recoveries and any adjustments lo claims cutstanding from previous years,

The Company recognises hability in respect of all claims incurred uplo the reporting date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected fulure payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the
Incident giving rise lo the claim except as olherwlse expressly indicated In an insurance contract. The liability for claims
Include amounts relating o unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expecied claims
seltlement cosis.

The provision for Incurred Bul Mot Reported (IBNR) claims is determined by the Company as required under circular
No. 9 of 2016 issued by the SECP. As per the SECP chrcular No. 9 of 2016 an insurer shall estimate IBNR claims
reserve based on the prescribed method provided in the guidelines. Guidelines also aliows the use of any other
alternative method of determining IBNR, if found more suitable for the risk class, provided that the amount estimated
under the alternative method shall not be less than the amount calculaled under prescribed method. The presoribed
method for estimaling IBNR claim reserve s the chain ladder method based on paid claims hereinafler called 'Incurred
But Not Paid' or 'IBNP'. The Basic Chaln Ladder (BCL) method uses a run off triangle 10 estimale the development
factors for each accident period which are further used to estimate the ullimate paid claims Dala from settiement
registers are used in the BCL models. Lags are determined to be the difference between the ‘date of loss’ and 'date of
claim payment’. Monthly lags are used since il reflects the claim developmenl patiern within a given year and the back
tesling supporls the same. Once IBNP has been determined using BCL, the oulstanding claims are deducted to arrive
al IBNR on paid basis

Lnder atternative method IBNR is determined on reported basls. IBNR (reported basis) s much similar to IBNR (paid
biasis) but is calculated using a different melhodology. |t does not use elther IBNP or outstanding claims to eslimale
IBNR rather, is determined using BCL method Development factors are determined for each sccident period lo
estimate the ultimately reported claims direclly Infimation registers are used in the BCL model where lags are
calcuimed as the diference betwesan the 'dete of loss' and ‘dale of inlimation®.

The analysis is carmed out separalely for each class of business and results determined through this alternative
mathod are compared 1o the results of preseribed method and higher of the two are sel as the final reserve.

Reinsurance recoveries againsi claims

Claim recoveries recelvable from the reinsurer are recognised as an assel al the same time as the claims which give
rise to the right of recovery are recognised as a llabifity and are measured al the amounl expecied Iv be received

Commission and other acquisition costs

Commission gxpense and olher acquisition costs are charged 1o the statement of comprehensive income at the lima
the policies are accepled, This expense is deferred and brought to slatement of comprehensive income as an expensa
In accordance with the pattern of recognition of the gross premium to which it relates, Commission expense is arrived
at after taking the impact of opening and closing deferred commission

la}
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Commission income from reinsurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the
Company. This income is deferred and brought to statement of comprehensive income as revenue in accordance with
the pattern of recegnition of the reinsurance premium to which it relates. Commission from reinsurers is amved at after
taking the impact of opening and closing uneamed commission. Profit commission, if any, which the Company may be
entiled to under the tarms of reinsurance, is recognised on accrual basis.

Pramium deficiency reserve

The Company is required as per Insurance Rules, 2017 10 maintain a provision in respect of premium deficiency for the
class of business where the uneamed premium liability is nol adeguate to meet the expected future liabiiity, after
reinsurance, from ciaims and olher supplemantary expenses expected to be incurred afler the reporting date in respect
of the unexpired policies in that class of business al the reporling date. The movement in the premium deficiency
resarve is recorded as an expense [ income in the statement of comprehensive income for the year,

Al each reporting date, llabilly adequacy tests are performed separately lor each class of business 1o ensure the
adequacy of the uneamed premium ligbility for that class. Il |s performed by comparing the expected future lability,
afer reinsurance, from ciaims and other expenses, including relnsurance expense, commissions and other
underwriting expenses, expected lo be incurred afler reporting date in respect of policies in force at reporting date with
the carrying amount of uneamed premium liability. Any deficiency is recognised by estabiishing a provision (premium
deficiency reserve) to meet the defict. The expected lulure liability is estimatad wilh reference to the expenence during
the expired peniod of the contracts, adjusted for significant individual losses which are not expected to recur dunng the
remaining period of the policies, and expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable. The aexpected
ultimate net claim ratios for the unexpired periods of policies in force at reporting date for each class of business is as
follows:

Fire and property damage 56%
Marine, awiation and transpon 5%
Motor 4505
Health B4%
Miscallansous 3%

Based on an analysis of combined operating ratio for the expired period of each reportable segment, the management
congiders that the uneamed premium reserve for all classes of business as al the year end 15 adequate (except for
healih class) to meet the expected future liability alter reinsurance, from claims and other expenses, expected to be
incurred afler the reporfing date In respect of policies in those classes of business In force at the reporting date,

The Company has recorded premium deficiency reserve on the recommendation of actuary for health business.

Credilors, aceruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are camied at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 1o be
paid in the future for the services recelved, whether or not billed to the Company

Provislons are recognised when the Company has a preseni legal or constructive obligation as a resull of past events,
it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setiie the obligation and &
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed al each reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect the
cument best estimate.

Taxalion
Curran!

Provision of current tax |s based on the laxable Income for the year determined in accardance with the prevailing law
for taxastion of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing lax rates or lax rates expected to apply
to the profit for the year, If enacled. The charge for current 1ax also include adjusiments, where considered necessary,
1o provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalised during the current period for such years.

Deferred

Deferred lax is accounted for using the balance sheel method in respect of all temporary differences at the reporiing
dale betwean the tax bases and camying amounts of assels and liabilities for financial reporting purposes  Deferred lax
liabilites are generally recognisied for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets ara recognised 1o the
extent that it Is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused lax lesses and tax credils can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured al the tax rates Ihat are expected to apply to the penod when the asset
is reallsed or Lhe liability is settled, based on the fax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporiing date. Deferred tax |s charged or credited to the statemen! of comprehensive income,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are caried in the staternent of financial postion al cost. For the purposes of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits with banks, stamps in hand, term deposits with
maturity of less than three months and short term finances

Investmenls

All investments are intially recognised at cosl, being the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction
cosl, axcept for investmenls al fair value through profit or loss in which case transaction costs are charged lo the
staterment of comprehensive income. These are classified inta the following calegories:

- Investment al fair value through profit or loss
. Heid lo malurity

. fAvailable for sale

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

These financial assets are acquired principally for the purpose of generaling profil from short-term fuctuation in prices
or are part of & portfolio for which there is a recent actual patlemn of short-term profil taking

Subsequent lo Inllial recognilion these are measured at fair value by reference lo quoled market prices with the
resuiting gain or loss being included in net profit or loss for Lhe perod in which il arises.

3.14.1.2 Held 1o malurity

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the inlent and ability to hold fo maturity are classified as held
lo maturity and are inilially measured at cosl being the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction
cosl At subsequent reporling dales, these are measured al amortised cost using the effective yiald mathod.

Any pramium pald or discount avaled on acquisition of held to malurity invesimenls Is deferred and amonised over the
lerm af the Invesiment using the eflective yleld,

Income from held 1o malurity invesiments is recognised on a lime proportion basls 1aking into account the effective
yiald on the invesimentis.

The difference between (he redemplion value and the purchase price of the held lo malurity invesiments is amortised
gnd laken to the statemenl of comprehensive income over the term of the investment.

3.44.1.3 Available for sale

Avaliable for sale investimenis are those non-derivative investments Lhal are designaled as available for sale or are nol
classified in any olher calegory. Subsequent to initial recognilion, these are slaled at market value The Company uses
slock exchange queolation al the reporting dale lo delermine the market value of its quoled investments and MUFAP
rates o compule markel value of government secunties,

Dividend income and entittement of bonus shares are recognised when lhe Company's right 1o receive such dwidend
and bonus shares is established.

3.14.1.4 Leans and other receivables

These are non-derivative financial aszels with fixed or determinable payments that are nol guoted in an active marke!,
Subsequent fo inilial recognition these are measured at amortised cosl.

1.14.1.5 Date of recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of investmenis Ihat require delivery within the time frame established by reguiations
or market convention are recognised al the Irade date. Trade date is the dale on which the Company commits lo
purchase or sell the invesimen,
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Invesimen! property

fnvestment property is held for eaming rentals and capital appreciation. Investment property is accounted for under the
fair value model in accordance with Intematlonal Accounting Standards (IAS) 40, "Investment property™.

Investment properies, principally office buildings, are held for long-term rental yields. These are carred at fair value
The changes in fair values are presented in the statement of comprehensive income as part of other income

Operaling assels

Tangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciafion and accumulated impairment losses other than buidings,
Buildings are sialed at revalued amounts less accumulsied depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any)

Deprecialion on all operaling assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive income using the straight line
method so as lo write-off depreciable amounl of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is
charged from the month in which an assel Is acquired or capltalised, while no depreciation is charged for the month in
which Ihe assel is disposed of,

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, al each financial year end, and adjusted, if impact on
depreciation Is significant. Subsequent cosls are inciuded in the assel's carmying amount or recognised as a separate
assel, as appropriale. only when il is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will low 1o the
Company and the cost ol the item can be measured relfiably, All other repair and maintenance cosls are charged o
statement of comprehensive income in the period In which they are incurred,

The gain or loss on disposal of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assel is recognised as an income of expense.

An increase ansing on revaluation is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property and equipment. A decrease
arising on revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted against the surplus of that asset or, if no surplus exists, is charged to
the statemen! of comprehensive Income as an impalirment of the assel. A surplus arising subsequently on an impaired
assel is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income up lo the exent of the original impairment. Each
year. the dilference between deprecialion based on the revalued carrying amouni of the assel charged lo the statement
of comprehensive mcome and deprecialion based on the assel's origmal cosl, net of lax, is reclassified from
revaluation surplus on property and equipment lo unappropriated profit.

Intangibie

Software development cost are only capitalised lo the extenl that fulure economic benefits are expecled lo flow to the
enlity. Intangible assefs with finite useful lives are stated at cosl less accumulaled amortisation and accumulated
impairmenl losses, if any. Intangible assats wilh indefinite useful lives are stated al cosl less impairment losses, if any.
Amoriisation [s charged lo slatement of comprehensive income using the straighl line method

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operales an approved contribulory providenl fund for all permanenl employees, Equal monthly
contributions are made by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10 percent o! basic salary.

Dafined benelit plan

All permanent employees of the Company parlicipate in an approved funded defined graluity plan. Contributions to the
fund are made based on actuarial recommendations. The mosl recent actuarial valuation was carred ot as at
December 31, 2018 wsing lhe Projecled Unil Credil Melhod. Amounts arising as a resull of ‘Remeasurements’,
representing \he actuarial gains and losses and Ihe difference between the aclual investment returns and the retumn
implied by the net inlerest cos! are recognised in the slatemeni of financial position immedialely, with a charge or credit
to 'Other Comprehensive Income’ in the periods in which they occur,

Accumulating compensated absences

Provisions are made annually lo cover the obligation for accumulaling compensaled absences and are charged lo
statement of comprehensive income,
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Impairment of assels

The management assesses at each reporling date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial assels or a
group of financial agsels are Impaired. The carrying value of assets are reviewed al each reporting date 1o determine
whelher there is any indicalion of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assel |s
estimated. An impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds Its recoverable
amount.

Finangial instruments

All the financial assels and financial liabifities are recognised at the lime when the Company becomes a party lo the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognised when the Company loses control of contractual rights
thal comprise the financial assels and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligalion specified In the coniract is
discharged, cancelled or expired, Al the time of inliial recognition all financial assels and financial llabiliies are
measured al cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received for it Any gain or loss on derecognition
of financial assels and financial liabilities is taken 1o the slatemen! of comprehensive income in the period in which
financial instrumen is derecognised.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial iabilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the financial statemants only when
thera is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net
basis or 1o realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in prowiding services that are
subject to risks and retumns that are different from those of other business segments. The Company accounts for
segment reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and the Insurance Rules, 2017. The reported operating segments are also consislent with the intemal reporting
provided to Board of Directors which are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operaling segments. The perdormance of segmenis is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment.

The Company has five primary business segmenis for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor, health and
miscallanséous.

The perils covered under fire insurance Include damages caused by fire, riol and strike, explosion, earthquake,
atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation and terrorism

Marine insurance provides coverage againsl cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland transit.
Motor insurance provides comprehensive car coverage and indemnity against third party loss.

Health insurance provides coverage against expenses incurred during the hospilalisation due lo sickness, emergency
and accidents,

Miscellaneous insurance provides cover against burglary, loss of cash |n safe and cash In transit, travel, personal
accidenl, money, engineering losses, live stocks, crops and olher covers.

Firancing, invesiment and Income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are therefore, not aflocated to any
sagment.

Assets, liabilhes and capital expenditures that are directly atiributable to segmants have been assigned lo them, Those
assets and liabiliies which can not be allocated to a parlicular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as
unallocated corporale assets and liabilities,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of the Company's non-financial assels are reviewed al each financial year end for impairment
when evenis or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimaled recoverable amounl, the assets are wrillen down
lo their recoverable amount. The resulling impairment loss 15 laken to the stalement of comprehensive income.
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Faoreign currency transaclions and transiations

Foreign curency lransaclions are franslaled into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
Iransaction. Monelary assels and liabililies in foreign currencies are Iranslaled inlo Pak Rupees al the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting dale. Non-monetary items thal are measured in lerms of historical cost in a forelgn currency
are transialed using the exchange rales al the dales of the initial Irangactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign cumrency are translated using exchange rates at the date when the fair value was delermined,
Exchange gains or losses are included In income currently.

Righl-of-use assets and their related lease |lability

Righl-of-use assets

On initial recognition, righl-of-use assets are measured a! an amount equal 1o initial lease Fabiity adjusied for any
lease payments made al or before lhe commencement date, plus any initial costs incurred and an estimate of costs o
be incurmed lo dismanile and remove the underlying asset or the sile on which it s located.

Right-of-use assels are subsequenlly stated al cost less any accumulaled depreciallon / accumulated impairment
losses and are adjusted for any remeasuremenl of lease liability. The remeasurement of lease liability will only occur in
cases where the terms of [he lease are changed during the lease lenure.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over their expecled useful lives using the straighi-line method Depreciation on
addilions (new leases) is charged from Lhe month in which leases are enlered into. No depreciation is charged in month
in which the leases malure or are lerminaled.

Lease liability against righl-of-use asseis

The lease liabilities are inillally measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
interesl rate implicil in the lease, or if that rale cannot be readily delermined, \he Company’s incremental borrowing
rate,

The lease liability is subsequenlly measured al amortised cosl using the eflective interesl rate method. The lease
liability is also measured 1o reflect any remeasurement or change in lease lerms. These remeasurement of lease
liabilities are recognised as adjusiments to the carrying amount of related right-ol-use assels after the dale of inilial
recognition.

Each lease paymenl is allocaled between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost The finance cost is charged 1o

the statement of comprehensive income as financial charges over the lease period 0 as 1o produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of (he liability for each period.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at Iheir face value. Incremental costs directly altribulable 1o the
issue of new shares or oplions are shown in equity as a deduction, nel of tax, from the proceeds.

Expenses of management
Expenses of management allocated lo the underwriling business represent direclly altributable expenses and indirect

expenses allocated (o Ihe varlous classes of business on lhe basis of gross premium revenue, Expenses nol allocable
1o lhe underwriting business are charged as adminisirative expenses

Dividends and appropriations lo reserves

Dividends and appropriations o reserves are recorded in the period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its sharaholders. Basic EPS is calculaled by
dividing the profil or loss atfributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares oulstanding during the year. Diluled EPS is determined by adjusting the profil or loss allributable 10 the
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, il any,

0
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of these financial stalements & in conformily with accounting and reparting standards as appiicable in
Paklslan requires management to make judgments, estimales and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of its
accounting policles. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and vanous other
tactors thal are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revislons lo accounting estimates are recognised in tha period in wihich the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and fulure periods if the revision affecis bath current and
future periods.

Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgments were made by the management in the application of
accounting policies are as follows:

- Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR (notes 3.7 and 24);
- Provision for taxation and deferred tax (noles 3.12, 20 and 30);

- Defined benefit plan {notes 3.17.2 and 14);

- Fair values of buildings (notes 3.16, and 7);

= Falr values of invesiment preperiies (notes 3.15 and 7},

E useful lives, residual value and depreciation methed of property and equipment, inlangible assets (notes 3.18, 5
and 6);

- Premium deficiency reserve (nole 3.10),
- Classificalion of investments and ils impairment (notes 3.14, 8, 9 and 10),
- Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims (notes 3.8); and

- Provizgion against premium due but unpaid and amount due from other insurers [ reinsurers (notes 3.5, 13.3 and

13.4).
Note 2019 2018
— [Rupees in '000) —
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 5.1 812,803 299,552
Capital work-in-progress 53 27 844 16,067
840,747 315,619
Operating assels
o]
Cost! Revaied srounts Aicemasted Stprasiaben L
Disposals /| Revalar- | Asat Disposaisf|  Asal Do Viive) Do
Ma | o nhl[ Son |December| 0N |CwmaRel ] Deremiar] o [P0 R
Decambes
January 1 ook 53] 31 Jurary 1| o year fnole 52) " . per annum)
' (Rupess In ‘000)
Tracker eguipment - 7,581 . 7941 - 2 . 962 7009 313
Fumsdure and lixtures 29,466 §,508 {127} . 34 848 4,350 J484 (126} 7708 27040 0%
Office emapment 7958 I8 [.268) . 30504 1728 R TR e14} 12882 17,622 166T%
Compuler squipmen 5189 3530 (50) . 28568 5582 BOTE (S0} TEDOS  10EE1  FAAMK
Bulldings 129.885 19808 . 461137 EWEI0 29877 28978 . SENEE ES24T5 A%-1%
Molor vehicles-owned 565 6547 (127TH) . P3W OMEE 040 (11755 123m ENs 20
Fught of ose asset - vehide WIM2  GEO0 (55M) < M5408 25842 M5 (236 1T 1537ET 20M
Right of use assed - renled premises - 25,598 - - 29698 - 1246 - 1299 X400 16E7%
92076 144918 (19754) 481137 G7RIFT 92524 A7 705 (15.001) 165228 @13.149
- - [14.89%) [14,685) 2 o (Ma48) [(14.449)  (246)
—@ 2076 144,918 440) 461137 GRIGEZ G252 7705 (294500 150779 B12.600
———— — E——
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Cost Accymylated deprectation Writien
Down Valze|
Asal o Disposali /| Asa sa |o mnlm:iuk:r e -
Oecember acane December
l Jauany 0t ‘ m"hﬂ' " Jawgzry | | the yeat inola £2) " . | iy anram)
{Rupees in 000}
' Trackes equipmen| - ‘ - - . - - . . 13.13%
Fumilire and fodures 28281 4357  (1.682) 20466 2.501 123 (83 4350 2519 1%
DOffice pquipment B TATI (2508) 2785 a4l 5356 {2008 71X 021 16EM™
Camputer equipment 17193 10853 (2777 26188 5312 TAE2 RIS 9982 15.N7  333%
Buddings 128078 38N 120605 15516 14 - 28877 55908 E%-II%
Mator vehiclesowned a7 038 18632 (24082 IBSGE 11189 13852 (10383) wmB4R B 20%
l obor vehicles-leased B9202 55012 (2000 w300 WD 15397 (T94) 25842 W70 0%
Right of use assed - renfed premizes - . - - . - . . - 1657
mEm H:I1E'BE? E.'I!l! M20TE 49,185 60760 (17401) 92524 20458
' 52 Disposal of operating assets
Accumdiilated Sale Net gain {
Particul ihe M has
l lars of the assate Cost ation | 00K value povisace. | s6d) nde of disposal | Particulars of purchaser
{Fupees in "000)
Furniture and fixtures
I Various 127 {128) 1 33 37 Negolistion Rana Fumiture House
OMfice equipment
Various mobile phones B4E {529} 117 a2 {853] Megotiation Muhammad Kamran
' Gree alr conditionsr 49 (228} 121 as (86)| Negotialion M Akhta
Samsung 510 123 i 131 13 2 | Ingurance Claim Alfalah Insurance
iPhone 8s Plus 70 31) 39 a4 5 Megaotiation Faisal
Samsung Galary s8 0 (2d) 46 27 (19| Negotiation Faisal
1,288 (814) 454 271 (183
Computer equipment
l Laptop - Dell 50 {50y . & 6  Megolistion Sohall Ahmed
Motor vehicles « Owned
Suzuki Alto 608 {607) 1 500 459 | Company Policy Murid Abbas
' Suzukl Cultus 1.102 (1.065) ar 4GS 452 | Company Poficy tMubammead Efaz®
Toyola Corolla 1.528 (1.528} - 678 676 | Insurance Clalm Arwar Sheikh
Honda City 1,657 (1271} 288 B51 565 | Company Polioy Adnan Khalig™
Honda Civic 2,851 (2.520) 1m 1,178 1,045 | Company Policy  Tahir Masaud - CEO™
Toyola Coroia 1,872 {1.872} - 1.150 1,150 Megotiation Jahansai Al
Toyola Corclla 1,880 (1.316) 564 1,158 582 | Company Palicy Riffat Ali*
Honda CD 70 1,617 {1,576} 1 34 33 | Company Policy Adnan Shah*
l 12,775 {11,755) 1.020 6,034 5,014
Right of use asset - Vehicle
Toyota Corolia 1.485 (5% 1,438 1.550 114 | Company Pobcy Madeam Akbiars
l Tayota Corclla 1.083 (1,089 : 1217 1211 MNegotiation Muhammad Abbas
Handa City 1.062 (227 a3s5 1,184 349 | Company Policy Sohail Mustafa®
Toyota Corolla 1.900 (B593) 1.007 1.555 548 | Ingurance Clarm Jubilee General Insurance
l 5,534 (2.256) 3,278 5,500 228
Tetal - Decemper 31, 2019 19,754 (15.001) 4753  11.844 7.061
— T —
Total - December 31, 2018 33,161 (17.401) 15780 20605 5015
—_— —
' * These represen! persons In the employment of the Company.
' 521  The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in use amoaunts to 84 656 millon (2018 Rs. 88.816 million).
' ‘ (' (8]
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2019 2018
-+ {Rupeeas in "000) -—
Capital Work-in-Progress
Advances to suppliers® 11.511 11,135
Trackers 15,483 -
Others 850 4,832

27 844 18.067
* These represants advances relaled to purchase of vehicie

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2019
Cost Accumulated amorisation
D:m% Amartisa-
Aot | st |Chameto st [ g | onmie
As : al r
Additions | Disposals | Decamber Disposals | December [% par
Jarmuary 1 I Jatuary 1 | the year po 3 Dm;:tnr bt
{Rupees in 000}
Computer Software 8,485 19,145 - 25,810 2711 4 676 - 7447 18,163 20%:
——- e — ——— .
2018
Cosl Accumulated amortisation
Weion Amortisatio
Down Value
As m Addiions ke Asat | Charge for e m:::m st ;‘rx
doasery ) S0 | samuary 1 | the year | P December
1 n 31 armum)
—{Rupees in '000)
Computer Softwane £ A65 - . 485 1,272 1,499 - 2771 3,694 20%
—_— ——— —— =TT
Note 2019 2018
— {Rupees in '000) —
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Opening net book value 356,850 01,573
Fair value gain during the year 20,045 53 377
Closing nel book value 7.1 378,995 358,050
e — m—— —

The market vaiue of investment properies is Rs 376995 million {(2018:; 356 95 million) as per the valualion carried oul
by the independant professional valuer as at Decembaer 31, 2019.

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES - MUTUAL FUNDS

n 018
Vumberol | Camying | 0O | Unealsed| (| Nomberot | Caming | itihed | Mo
s wilue orovinion] gain | {loss| units willse provision) gain | (loss) | wale
I
~r———i—a|Ruptis in ‘100] {Rupees in 000}
Fasir value through profil or loss
Allalah GHP Slock Fund 155,951 arom - 4588 41662  MS58B1 45000 - (1823 A0
HBL Stock Fund 3R508T F.000 . - 38000 3993 &5000 - (TA7} wm7
MCB Pakistan Siock Maked Fund E53ma 0,003 ‘ 3 60000 S9VEM &0.000 - (9978 So.002
NEP Stock Fund (Formerdy: MAFA Stock Fund) 5,611,085 74 89S . 4546 TO441 IB4S299 WAT0 - (8575 49,395
UBL Stock Advantage Fund 89417 20,000 . - M000 BIB45SY 80,000 . G000} 51,000
Alfalah GHP Manay Marke! Fund 1ETET 280,000 - [2.526)  25T4M - - ‘ : .
9500191 40572 - 6605 4975717 60200954 2080 - (4A049) 225820

4., -
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INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
Effective
Year of Profil
Particulars yield % per 2019 2018
malturity SRR paymenl
ssmeene{Rupees in "000)}—
Held 1o maturity (9.1)
Pakistan investmen! Bonds 2020 13.98% Semi-annual 24 679 14,643
Pakistan Investmant Bonds 2021 13.08% Semi-annual 18,0894 1.021
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 11.98% Semi-annual 63,837 24 323
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 11.25% Semi-annual 1.018 60,508
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 12.76%: Semi-annual 1.102 14 880
Pakistan Investiment Bonds 2021 11.92% Semi-annual 213,489 10,961
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2019 6.34% Semi-annual - 104,329
322,219 320,665
At fair value through profit or loss
Treasury Bills 2020 10.30% On malturity 35,411 76,674
Treasury Bills 2020 10.30% On matunty 53,378 245,022
Treasury Bills 2020 10.30% C'n maturiry 33,467 48,113
Treasury Bills 2019 10.30%: Cin maturity - 431,117
Pakistan Investmen| Bonds 2021 12.00% Semi-annual 32,473 123,838
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2021 12.00% Semi-annual 80,307 246 075
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds 2023 12.66% Semi-annual 82,843 04 886
Pakislan Investment Bonds 2023 13.71% Semi-annual a7.726 105,614
Fakistan Investmeni Bonds 2023 13.45% Semi-annual 311.540 -
Pakistan Investmen! Bonds 2022 13.75% Semi-annual 94 516 -
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds 2023 13.80% Semi-annual 169,633 -
Pakigtan Investment Bonds 2023 13.77% Semi-annusal 67.726 -
Faklstan Invesimeni Bonds 2022 12.87% Semi-annual 45,841 s
Paklstan Investmen! Bonds 2024 12.38% Seml-arnual 47,208 -
Pakistan Investment Bonds{fioaters) 2028 14.64% Semi-annual 127.050 123.038
Pakislan Invesiment Bonds{ficaters) 2028 13.35% Semi-annual 125,900 -
Pakistan Investment Bonds(floaters) 2028 14.64%  Semi-annual 254 100
Pakiztan Investiment Bonds(floalers) 2028 14 58% Semi-annual 97,988
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds{floaters) 2028 14.58% Semi-annual 108,060 -
1,837 655 1,483,477
Total market valua % 159,874 1,814,142
Total camying valus 2.1"4'9!‘.2!.1';.&E 1,824,846

These include Pakislan invesiment Bonds which are placed as stalutory deposit with the State Bank of Pakistan in
accordance with the requirements of Clause (a) of sub-section 2 of section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
having market value of Rs 208.285 million (December 31, 20168: Rs. 310.364).

INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES

Fair value through profif or loss

Term fimnance certificate
Habit Bark Limied 500,000 Perpelual 3 monihe Kibor Ouarady 50,000
plus 1.6%
Commercial paper
Hub Power Company Limilea 1,500,000 2020 184,025 -
2,000,000 104 025

(o

10 2018
Numder ol Profit | Camylng | | Number of | Meaturity Proft | Camying
cortificates Conpom cate payment | amount | | certificates | year Coupen rald paymmnt | - amount
Rupaes in 090 Fupeis In 000
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10.1 The effective yield on commercial paper and term finance cerlificates is 14.98% and 13.55% ( 2018: Nil} per annum

respaciively,

Mote 2019 2018
— {Rupees in '000) --—

1 INVESTMENTS IN TERM DEPOSITS

Held to maturity

Deposits maturing within 12 manths 111 300,000 525,000

14 These carry profil rate ranging from 13.5% per annum (2018 9.5% 1o 12%) and have malurities upto January 2020,

Mota 2018 2018
~— (Rupees in '000) —
12 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Recelvable from related parlies 121 98,818 79,281
Advances - considered good 5,708 9,043
Secunly deposits 75.576 55,030
Sales tax recoverable 57,389 35,350
Accrued income on investmants and deposils B8, 077 45,429
Others 12.2 53,769 62,749

389,338 285,892
E————— aEe——

1 This includes receivables amounting to Rs. 18 858 million, Rs. 19,388 milllon, Rs. 5146 milion and Rs. 1.820 million
(2018: Rs 25.859 million, Rs, 18 367 milllon, Nil and Rs. 3,381 milllon) charged to 13| Life Insurance Limited, |G1 Finex
Securities Limited, 1G] Holdings Limited and Packages Limited, raspectively, under group shared services.

Thesa Include a receivable from lakaful operations amounting to Rs. 58,028 milkon (2018; Rs 58 0Z8 milllon) in respect
of Sindh Sales Tax as disclosad In 22 4 to the financial stalements.

Note 2019 2018
- (Rupees in '000) —

INSURANCE / REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Dy from Insurance contracl holders - unsecurad

- considered good 692 753 537,728

- consldered doubitful 143,389 120,338
1318132 B3 1562 658,066

Lass: provision for impairment of receivables from insurance
contract holders 13.3 (143.398) (120.338)
692,753 537 728

Due from olher insurar / reinsurer - unsecured

- cansiderad good 732,114 563,442

- considered doubtiul 41,423 41,423
773,537 604,865

Less: pravision for iImpairment of receivables from insurance
contract holders 135 {41.423) (41.423)
732114 563,442

1.424 BETY 1,101 470

12,
12.
13
13.
13

2
1 This includes an amount of Rs. 17520 million {2018; Rs. 18 058 million) receivable from related parties
i

The aggregate amount due by directors, chiel executive and executives of the Company amounts to Rs 0171 million
(2018: Rs 0.297 million},
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Note 2019 2018
Provision for doubtful receivables - insurance conlract holders —== (Rupees in "000) —
Opening 120,238 102,741
Charge for the year 26,298 17.687
Witen off during the year {3,237} -
Balance as at December 31 134 143,399 12'.’]5333

This includes an amount of Rs. §.720 million (2018 Rs. 0.655 million) prowded agains! related parhes.

2019 2018
Provision for doubtful receivables - other insurer / reinsurer ==« (RUpees In D00} -
Opening 41,423 41.423
Charge for the year - .
Balance as at December 31 41,423 41,423
P ——

RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
Defined benefil plan - Gratuity Fund

The Company offers an approved gratuity fund for all employees. Annual contributions are made lo the fund on the
basis of acluarial recommendations. The gratuity is governed under the Trust Acl, 1882, the Trust Deed and the Rules
of Ihe Fund, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the applicable local regulalions. An
acluarial valuallon is carried out every year to delerrmine the kability of the Company in respect of the benefil. The most
recenl valuation in this regard has been carmied oul a5 al December 31, 2019 using the Projecled Unit Credit (PUC)
Actuarial Cos! Method as allowed under the intermational Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 - 'Employes Benefils' for
vaiuation of the Fund.

The Company faces lhe following risks on accoun! of gratuity fund
Final salary risks

The risk thal Ihe final salary al the time of cessation of service is greater Ihan whal was assumed. Since lhe benefit is
calculaled on the linal salary, the benefil amount would also increase proportionalaly,

Asset volatility

Most assets are invesled in sk free Investments. However, investments in shares, are subjecl o adverse fluciuation
as a resull of change in market price.

Discount rate fluctuation
The plan habilifies are calculaled using a discoun! rate sel with reference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in

corporate bond yields will increase plan llabilities, although this will be partially offsel by an increase in the value of the
currenl plan's bond holdings.

Investment risks

The risk of the Investment underperforming and not being sufficient 1o meet the liabilities. The risk Is mitigated by
closely moniloring the performance of investment,

Mortality risks

The risk that the aclual mortality experience is differenl. The effecl depends on Ihe beneficiares’ service | age
distnbution and the banafil

Longevity risks

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured al the plan level
over lhe enlire reliree population.

Withdrawal risks

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience lThan assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the
beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the banafil.

Deo
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Principal actuarial assumptions

Valuation discoun| rate

Valuation discount rate for statement of comprehensive income
Salary increase rate - shorf ferm

Salary increase rate - lang term

Retum on plan assets

Duration

Normal retirement age

Withdrawal rate

Mortality rale

Next salary increase date

Amount recognised in the statement of financial position

Reconciliation

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Less; tair value of plan assels

Payable tc defined benefit plan

Movement in net liability recognised
Opening net liabllity

Expense for the year

Other comprehensive (gain) / loss
Conlributions

Movement in present value ol defined benefit obligation
Opening

Currenl service cost

|mterest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial {gain) / loss on obligation

Closing

Movament in the fair value of plan assels

Opening
Expected return on plan assels

Contributions
Banafils paid
Actuaral loss on obligation

Amount recognised in staterment of comprehansiva income
Current service cost

Interest cost
Pasi service cost

Expense for the year

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on obligation
Remeasurement loss on plan assels

Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on assels
Acluanal (loss) | gain

e

D

2018 2018
11,75% 13.75%
1375% .50%
11.25% 13.76%
11.25% 13.75%
11.25% 13.75%

10.73 years 10.81 years
58 58
Low Moderate

SLIC 2001-D5 SLIC 2001-D5
1-Jan-2020 1-Jan-2019

2018 2018
- [Rupees in "000) «--

113,983 98,685
(94,620 (77,468)

19,363 21,297
=

21,217 12,419
15,864 11,658
(7,407) 7,451
(10,311) (10,311)
19,363 21,217
98,685 84,971
13,627 10,990
13,336 7.643
(3.816) (8,565)
(7.848) 3,648
113,983 ___ 08,685
77.468 72,552
11,098 8975
10,311 10,311
(3.818) (8,565)

(441) {3,805)
94620 77,468
13.627 10,990
2237 668
15,864 11,658
(7,648) 3,646

441 3,805
(7.407) 7.451
11,098 6,975

(441) {3,808)
10657 3,170

_—
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2019 2018
Analysis of present value of defined benefil obligation ~— (Rupees in "000) —
Split by vested [ non-vested
(1} Vested benefits
(i) Non-vasted benefits

113,883 98,685

113 883 88,685
—

Sensitlvity anaiysis

———— —— 219 - 2018
Increase / (decrease)} in Increase / (decraasa) in
aish:mmﬁltln present value of defined ni:mg:u:‘n present value of defined
benefil obligation benefit abligation
%) | Rupeesin'000 M) | Rupeesin'g00
Discount rale +1% -9.92% {11,310) +1% -10,09% (9,954)
-1% 11.54% 13.158 1% 11.74% 11.582
Salary increase rate +1% 11.99% 13,663 1% 12.12% 11,956
-1% ~10.45% {11,818) 1% 10.57% {10.427)
Life expeclancy / +10% -0.15% {168) +10% 0.25% (251)
wilhdrawal rate -10% 0.15% 170 -10% 0.26% 256

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumplions constant.
In practice, lhis iz uniikely 1o occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be comelated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation lo significant assumptions, same method (present value of the defined
beneft abligation calculated with the projected unil credit method at the end of the reporting pericd) has been applied
as when calculaling the gratuity liability.

Plan assets comprise of the following: 2019 Percentage 2018 | Percenlage |

Rupees in "000] | composition | | Rupees in "000| | composition |
Equity investments 165,545 17.45% 14 526 18.76%
Cash and bank deposils as7 1.02% 16,809 21.70%
Government securifies 77,108 B1.49% 46,133 §8.55%
Fair value of plan assels 84 820 100% =_??.463 - 100%

As per the actuarial recommendalions, the expecled retum on plan assels was taken as 11,25% (2018: 13.75%), which
Is representative of ylelds on long-term Government bonds. Due 1o the Increased volatility of share prices in recent
manths, Ihere is no clear indication of return on equity. It |s Iherefore assumed that the yleld on equity matches the
return on debl.

Based on actuarial advice, the Company Inlends to charge an amount of Re 16209 million in the financial statements
for the year ending Decembear 31, 2020.

The Expected Contribution for the next one year should take into account the maximum annual contribution limit set by
lha Income Tax Rules, 2002 | e. the basic payroll of the last monih of the financial year end, If the contribution exceeds
the limit defined in the income Tax Rules, the Company may apply to Ihe Commissioner of Inland Revenue [CIR} for
special contribution for the excess amounl. The Expected Graluity Expense Is around 8.55% of annual salary which is
greater than the maximum allowable limil of B8.33%. Therelore. the Company may contribute up to Rs. 158 million
during 2020

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefil obligation for the gratuity scheme is as follows:

Less than | Between Between Over Total
a year 1-2 Years 2-56 years | 5 years |
(Rupees in '000}
2019
Gratuily 3,701 8,637 24,338 520 644 566,620
2018
Graluity 1,860 3,768 31,334 665217 702,279

M
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14.1.11 Historical data on the deficil / (surplus) of the plan is as lollows:
[ 2018 || 2017 || 2016 |
i (Rupees in '000) ===-zs-mzmemx pon
Presenl value of defined benefit obligation 113,983 98,685 B4.971
Fair value of plan assets (B4 820) (77,468) (72,552)
Deficit | (surplus) _— 16,363 21.217 12,418

Defined contribution plan - Pravident Fund

The Company has set up a providenl fund for its permaneni employees and contributions were made by Ihe Company
lo the Trust in accordance with the reguirements of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017, The total charge agains!
provident fund for lhe year ended December 31, 2019 was Rs. 15.352 million (December 31, 2018: Rs, 13.251 million).
The net assets based on unaudited financial statements of Provident Fund as al June 30, 2019 are Rs. 96.068 million
oul of which 81% were invested in differenl financial instruments calegories as provided in Seclion 218 of lhe
Companies Acl, 2017 and the rules formulated therein. The camrying value of the investments of the provident fund as
al June 30, 2018 (unaudited) was Rs. 105.078 million. The above investrments out of provident fund have been made in
accordance with the requirements of Section 218 of the Companias Acl, 2017 and lhe rules formulated for fhis
purpase.

ne 30, 2019 (un-audited June 30, 2018 (audited)
Ru in % of the Ru in % of tha
';um size of the p, uEu!uE size of the
fund fund
Government securities 78,553 75 71% 59,676 59.67%
Lisled securilies 5,334 5.08% 4 BEO 4 B6%
Bank deposils Z467 2.35% 16,802 16.90%
Mutual Funds 12,721 1211% 13,57 13.57%
Term finance cerificates 5.000 4.75% 5,000 5.00%
Total 105,076 1% 100.009 100%
2019 2018
14.3 Staff Strength {Number of employees)
Number of employees as al December 31 202 176
Average number of employees during the year 189 176
Note 2019 2018
——o (Rupees in '000) ——
18 PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 23 972,374 613,175
Prepaid rent 24 665 21,763
Advance agains| salary 12,003 5.754
Others 13,714 4 4B5
1,022 766 645177
16 CASH AND BANK
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 1,122 -
Policy stamps In hand . 240
Cash at bank
Curmrent accounts 13,980 3,820
Savings accounis 16.1 117,988 472 982
131 988 476,921
HJ—}- 133,110 ATT 161
I."D —_—— e
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The balances in savings accounts carry mark-up ranging between 11.25% lo 12.5% (2018: 6.5% to 10%) per annum.

MNote
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of cash flow statement:
Cash and Bank
111

Term depaosits having original maturity of upto three months

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX

Opening balance
Surplus on revaluation due to change In accounting policy a3

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property and equipment on accounl
of incremental depreciation

Related deferred tax

Change in falr value - net of tax

Closing surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

BORROWINGS

2019

133110
300,000

2018

———— [Rupe=ss in "000) -

477,161
525,000

433,110
——

281,977

1.002,1861
———

(19,857)
5,758

(14,098)
45430

313,309
—_——

Lease fiability against right-of-use assets - molor vehicle 151,773 118,881
Lease [iability against fight-of-use assets - rented premises 25,746 -
w1 _Jete __TiERe
Curment portion 50,597 24 265
Non-current portion 126,822 84 616
177519 118,881
Lease liability against right-of-use assets
| 2018 2018
""IT:::'"' Financial || Principal MII':;:’“ Financisl | | Principal
Paymianti charges outstanding Paymeits charges outstanding
(Rupees In "000)
Mot iater than one year 68,530 17.842 50597 26,706 2.441 24 265
Later than one year and
not later than five years 146,834 18,912 126,922 106,260 11,644 84,816
21 5,373 3?5354 177,619 132,966 14,085 1 131331:
2019 2018

B,

= (Rupees in '000) ----
INSURAMNCE / REINSURANCE PAYABLES

1,269,750 703,314
—_—

Due to othar insurers / reinsurars

0
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DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred debils arising in respect of :

22

2013

2018
Restated

=== (Rupees in '000) -—

- Provision for doubtful recelvables (53,599) (46.911)
- Defined benafil plan (5,615)| {6,153)
- Untealised ipss on investments . (15,878)
- Lease lability agamist right-of-use-assels (51,481) (34 475)
(110,695 (103,417
Deferred credils arising due to
- Accelerated lax depreciation 30,250 [ 36,738
- Surplus on property and equipment 127971 -
- Fair value gain on investman| property 60,100 54,287
- Unrealised gain on invesiments 6,224 -
- Right-of-use-assets 52,254 33,979
285,749 125,004
1?!:-!10-¢ 21.587
OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Agenl commission payable 196,513 154,728
Cash margin 288 118 265036
Faderal axcise duty 39416 29177
Faderal insurance fas 5554 1.977
Acereed expenses 139,307 136,104
Others 119,825 148,910

M,

786,731 ?335932

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company is defending a suil againsi i by M/s Nawaz Enierprises lor recovery of Rs. 9.45 million on account of
insurance claim. The managemeant, basad on a advice of the legal counsel, is confident that the oulcome of the casa is
likely lo be in favor of the Company,

The Company is defending a sull filed against il and the beneficiary by the Federation of Pakistan amounting to Rs,
4,929 million. The petition |s pending for hearing before Civil Court judge. The management, based on a adwice of the
legal counsed, is hopaful that the outcoma of the case is likely to be decided In favor of the Company.

An appeal was filed before the Commissioner - Appeals, the Sindh Revenue Board (SREB) againsl the order passed by
the Assistant Commissioner, SRB under section 23{1) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 for tax perods
July 2011 to December 2012 in respect of re-insurance accepled transactions which was decided against the
Company. The department alleged thal ihe Company provided re-insurance services to local insurance companies and
demanrded Sindh sales tax on services under Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011, The Commissioner Appeals had
decided the malter against the company. Against the order of the Commissioner - Appeals, furlher appeal had been
fled before the Appellate Tribunal, SRB on January 16, 2015, which was also decided against the Company. The
Company had filed an appeal in the Honourable High Courl of Sindh which is pending adjudication. The management,
based on a advice of the legal counsel, is hopeful that the outcome of the case will be decided in favor of the Company.

During the prior year, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) raised a demand of tax of Rs 430.412 million under section
23(1) of Sindh Sales Tax on Sarvices Act (SSTA), 2011, In respect of sales tax on reinsurance obtained from forelgn re.
Insurers by the Company The departman! has also imposed a penalty of Rs 21,520 million.

The department alleged Lhal the Company has received re-insurance services from foreign re-insurance companies for
the penod from July 2011 to December 2014 and # is the conlention of the department (hal these sarvices are liable to
sales tax under S5TA, 2011 The department attached the Company's bank account and directed the Company's
panker to lssue pay orders to SRB. The pay orders of Rs 58.028 million from the Company’s bank accoun| were issuad
by the Company's banker on Decembear 27, 2018 upon direction of SRE .

Tha Company has filed an appeal befare the Commissioner Appeals on December 28, 2018 againsl the above order
The management in hearings held, during the year, before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB has submitted that:

aQ
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The paymenis lo foreign re-insurance companes are not a serice and is merely a re-distribulion of the
insurance risk and therefore the insurance premium. There is no value addifion involved since in essence it s a
sharing of the Insurance risk between the insurer and re-insurers. The Manageman! believes that the gross
premium charged by the insurer was already subject to Sales Tax on the gross amount, hence it is lllogical to
again subject it to sales lax upon its re-distribution keeping in view the facl thal neither any service is being
provided to tha policy holder nor any value addition is being made,

These risk sharing arangements have been made by the Company with the re-insurance companies
incorporaled oulside Pakistan with no legal or physical presence therefore it is lhe view that the provisions of
Sindh Sales Tax laws are nol applicable to these type of arrangements and are outside the jurisdiction of Sindh
Sales Tax laws.

The management believes thal even if it is assumed thal Sindh Sales Tax on re-insurance provided to insurer /
insurance companies is applicable, the law doas not provide any mechanism for caleulating the basis on which such
tax will be imposed and its related payment and the same would have been claimed as adjustable Input tax by the
Company against its oulpult lax liability.

The Company had also fled a constitutional petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi (Ihe Court)
on December 28, 2018 seeking protection from the above mentioned coercive action taken by the tax department. The
Court had suspended the above mentioned attachment notice and also instructed the bank that the said pay orders
should not be encashed,

Subsequent to the year end, the Courl has disposed of the constitutional pefition fogether with the other similar
petitions and has ordered SRB no! to enforce recovery of impugned demand before expiry of seven days of the receipl
of the final decision in appeal or stay application by the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB. whichever is eatlier,

The management, based on lhe advice received from their tax and legal advisors, is confident thal this malter is likely
lo be decided in favour of the Company. The Company has recorded Rs 58.028 million a5 'other recelvable’ in these
financial stalements.

The contingencles relating to taxation are giver in note 30.2 to the financial statements.

Note 2019 2018
NET INSURANCE PREMIUM —— (Rupeas in ‘000) ———
Written gross premium 2a1 5.1477.105 4,417,930
Add:  Urneamed premium reserve - opening 1,503,062 1,185 547
Less: Uneamed premium reserve - closing {1.860,408)| | (1,503,062)
Premium samed 3.1 4 819,758 4,100,415
Less: Reinsurance premium ceded [2,782,164) | [ (1,986,237)
Add: Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded - opening (613,175} {4B1,966)
Less: Prapaid reinsurance premium ceded - closing 972,374 613,175
Reinsurance axpense (2,422865) (1 .BE4,018)
2,396,793 2.2&5&3?

This includes an amaount of Rs. 15.81 million (2018: Nil) and 5,186 million (2018 Nil) in respect of premium written and

eamed on tracking services,

2018 2018
NET INSURANCE CLAIMS --—-- [Rupees in "000) —-—
Claims paid 1.617 607 1.620.722
Add: Owutstanding claims (including IBNR) - closing 1,512,227 1,314 812
Less: Ouistanding ciaims (including IBMR) - opening {1,314 B12)  (1,226,184)
Claims expense 1,815,022 1,708,350
Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries received (452 ,606) (436,336)
Add: Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect of
culstanding claims - closing {1,012 584) (854, 041)
Less: Reinsurance and other recoverias in respect of
outstanding claims - opening 854,041 723,743
Reinsurance and alher recoveries revenue {611,549) (566 ,634)
1203473 _1,142.716

Mk,
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26.1

Claims development tables

24

The following table shows the development of fire claims over a period of ime. The disclosure goes back lo the period
when the earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims
paymenis. For other classes of business the uncerlainly about the amount and timings of claims payment is usually

resoived within a year.

Analysis on gross basis

{Accideni year JL_2005  J|__2016 ]| 2017 [ 2018 2019 Total |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Estimales of ultimale claims cost:
Al end of accdenl year 324 613 332,103 363,40 675,230 4682 385 2,057,832
One year later 71 882 58,703 330,493 364,402 - 1,425,480
Two years later 370,112 303,642 305,808 - - a79 562
Three years laler 360,734 371478 . - - 722
Four years later 322218 - - . 322218
Estimale of cumulative claims 322218 3,478 305,808 354,402 462,285 1,826,291
Cumulative payments to date {296,2308) (368, 538) (278, 113) {314,958) (124 558) (1.380,602)
Liability recognised in the

staternent of financial pesition 25,979 2842 26,495 40,444 337,829 H&IIEG

The above effects have been worked out on the assumption thal increase / decrease in net claims expense pertains lo

individual segment In isolation.

NET COMMISSION EXPENSE

Commission paid or payable

Add: Deferred commission expense - opening

Less: Deferred commission expense - closing
Met commission

Less: Commission received or receivable

Add: Unearned reinsurance commission - opening
Less: Uneamed reinsurance commission - closing

Commission from reinsurers

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Employee benefil cost
Rent, rates and laxes

Electricity and gas
Repairs and maintenance
Communication

Tracker / security locks
Depreciafion and amadtisation
Bad and doubtful debts
Vehicle running expenses
Travelling expenses
Representation expanses
Frinting and stationary
Legal and professional
Adverlisemenl expenses
Miscellaneous

Employee benafit cost

Salaries, allowance and other benefils
Charges for pos! employment benefit

B

Note
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548
13.3

2019 2018
— {Rupeas in '000) —
558471 508,265
153,419 127 569
(178.261) (153,419)
533,629 482,415
(550.858) (435,423)
{120,933} {(101,679)
174,561 120,832
(467 ,231) (416,169)
36,298 66,246
e
2019 2018
Restated
— (Rupeos in '000) —
458,322 3BT B43
43,577 37,508
13,468 11,506
15,319 14,832
24,618 12,063
98,568 83,035
92,381 62,259
26,208 17.567
44 814 33,757
30,209 29620
10,203 8,909
9,420 9,188
35,118 37,315
17,664 7,057
3,212 2852

923,181
b

755 341
et

427 106 362,472
31216 25,371
458 322 387 843
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L
INVESTMENT INCOME

incame from equity securities

Fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income

Income from debl securities

Fair value through profit or loss
Retum on government sacurities
Return on sukuk, commaercial paper and lerm finance certificate

Held to maturity
Return an government securities

Income from term deposits
Retum on term deposils

Netl realised gains / {loss) on investments

Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds

Held to maturity
Government securities

Net unrealised income | (loss) on invesiments

Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds
Govemmaent securibes

Total investment income

OTHER INCOME

Reversal of Workers' Welfare Fund
Retum on bank balances

Gain on sale of fived assets

Exchange gain

Fair value gain on investment properties
Miscellaneous

Note
OTHER EXPENSES

Group shared services expenses

Insurance expense

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional

Auditors’ remunaration 29.1
Donations

Auditor's remuneration

Fee for stalutcry audi

Fee for intenim review

Fee for audil of regulatory relurm

Special cerifications and sundry senices
Tax advisory and other consultancy services
Out of pockel axpenses

e,

2019

2018

~- (Rupees in '000) —-

2o 5.870
230,840 838,104
20,733 -
36,387 27 860
90,051 63,835
13,426 5,140
(1.806) {1,240}
5,605 (44 0459)
69611 {10,704}
= RRSE T B
2018 2018
Restated
-- (Rupees in "000) —
- 66618
21,551 7.385
7.091 5.015
1141 4,048
20,045 53.377
136 a5
49, 964 136,488
2019 2018
— (Rupees In "000) —
8791 7.680
13,248 11,362
1,382 148
1,506 11,808
3,047 14,490
204 415
29!155 42 603
1,208 1,150
500 500
368 3s0
1,101 1,250
500 3.018
270 222
11,490

3.947
_— — |
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2019 2018
Restated
—- [Rupees in '000) -—
TAXATION
For the year
Current 216,101 156,850
Daferrad 17,638 382

233,740 157 232

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profil before lax 808,897 530,567

B —————————
Tax calculation at the rate of 20% (2018: 20%) 234,000 153,864
Provision for Impalrment 2 1,740
Change in lax rate - (463)
Others (260) 2.091

233,740 187232

Smss——————————  EEEEEe—

Taxalion

The Company has a group laxation policy with ils Holding Company under section 59AA of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 under which payments of tax are made through Holding Company,

The income tax assessmenis of lhe Company have been finalised up lo and including the lax year 2017, However, the
Company has filed appeals in respect of certain assessment years which mainly refate lo the following:

While finalising the assessment for the year 1899-2000 the Taxalion Officer had not allowed credit for tax paid under
section 54 amounting to Rs. 3 million for which reclification application is filed which is pending.

The Company has also fled applications in respect of certain mistakes made In the orders passed under seclion 124 of
the Income tax Ordinance for 2001-2002 and 2002.2003. The applicalions flled were rejacted by the T.0. against which
appeals had been filed with the CIT (A} which are pending.

The Additional Commissioner of Income Tax (AC) has issued notice under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance. 2001 in respect of the tax year 2005 and 2006 whereby he has proposed lo disallow claim of expenses and
exemplion in respect of gain on sale of shares and taxed income from associates, Against the above notice, the
Company has filed 2 constitutional pefition before the Honorable High Count, The regular hearlng of petition is curranily
pending with the High Coun.

In reapect of tax year 2007, oll significan] issues Involved amounting to Re. 7 billion were decided in favor of the
Company by CIR{A) and then by the ATIR. However, no appeal effect order has been passed. Further, certain matiers
amounting to Rs. 82 million thal were remanded back to DCIR by the CIR(A) were not decided upon by the High Courl.
The Company has written a letler to the taxation officer for passing appeal effect orders. The department had filed
Income Tax Reference Application before Honorable High Court of Sindh against the deletion of the addition made on
accounl of re-characterisabion of actual reafized capilal gain, The said Income Tax Reference Application was heard by
Honorable High Court and the judgment has been passed in favour of the Company.

The tax depariment has further filed a civil petilion before the Honorable Supreme Courl of Pakistan agains! the
judgement of the Honorable High Court which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2008, the Additional Commissioner Audil Division-ll had Issued nolice under section 122 (5A) of the
Ordinance for passing an amended order on certain issues. The Company filed a writ petition befare the Honorable
High Courl of Sindh which dismissed the petition by direcling the Company 1o submit its responses to the assessing
authority. . Moreover, the Honorable High Court had directed the assessing authority to pass the order, preferably
within two manths of the service of the Court's order, siriclly in accordance with law keeping in view the provisions
relating to Insurance business and the decisions of the High Court and the Supreme Court on fhe subjecl issues
However, to-date no notice has been received from the taxalion authorities
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The additional Commissioner Audil zone IIl LTU Karachi issued anciher notice under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance
in May 14, 2014 and passed an amended assessment order under section 122(5A) by disallowing provision for IBNR
and allocation of expense against capital gains and dividend income. As a resull of amended assessment demand of
Rs. 63.166 million was created. Agalnst the disallowances made by the ACIR, the Company has filed an appeal before
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and also filed an application for stay of demand. Pursuant lo the stay
application, the CIR(A) has granted stay of demand lo the Company. Against lhe above disallowance, the company
fled an appeal before the learmned Appellate Tribunal Inland Rewvenue. Further, the company challenged the
assessment order on the ground thal the assessment was barred by limitation of time. Moreover, the depariment filed a
cross appeal before the ATIR challenging the relief granted by the CIR{A). The ATIR has decided both the appeals on
the point of limitation of law as contained under section 122(2) of the Ordinance and have decided the appeal in favor
of the company. Moreover, the deparimental appeal has also been rejecled being treated as infructuous. The
department has flled a reference application before the Sindh High Court against the order of the ATIR which ig
pending adjudication

Morsover, pursuant o the decision of the CIR{A), the ACIR has passed an appeal effect order duly incorporating the
relief granted by lhe CIR(A) in respect of allocation of expenses and tax refundable of Rs. 18.030 million has been
determined.

In case of lax year 2009, the Depuly Commizsioner of Inland Revenue (DCIR) has pazsed the ameénded order under
seclion 122(5A) of the Ordinance by disallowing provisions on accouni of IBNR, Unearned Commission and allocation
of expenses relafing to exempt income. As a resull of amended assessment demand of Rs 141 million was crealed.
The DCIR has made certain errors in the ordar for which application for rectification was filed. Rectified order under
Seclion 221 has been passed and as a result demand has been reduced to Rs.51 million. The leamed CIR{A) has
granted partial reliel in respect of certain issue and confirmed cerlaln disallowances. The company filed further appeal
before the appellate thbunal inland revenue (ATIR) in respect of issues on which relief was not allowed by the CIR{A),
The ATIR, pursuant to the appeals filed against the order of CIR({A), has now passed the order whereby the ATIR has
confirmed disallowance made on account of provision for IBNR. Further issue of allocation of expenses agains
investment income has been remanded back to CIR(A), As regards, the issue of addition made on account of provision
of uneamed commission, the ATIR has upheid the decision of CIR{A)} whereby disallowance made on this score is
deleted. In respect of issues decided againslt the Company, a reference application was filed before honorable Sindh
High Court where the IBNR issue has been decided in favor of the Company whereas remaining issues are pending
adjudication.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenus (ACIR) has passed an amended assessment order under section
122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein lax on dividend income, commission income and property Income has been charged
at corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for lhe year) by Irealing such income as business income of the company under Fourth
Schedule to the Ordinance. As & resull of the amended assessment demand of Rs.31.420 million was created. The
Company paid an amount of Rs 10 million and obtained stay from the Commissioner Inland Revenue fill 31 Augus|
2015 in respect of payment of the remaining tax demand of Rs.21.420 milllon. Further, against the above treatment
meted out by the ACIR, the Company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) which is
pending adjudication, The Company also filed a petition against the said order before the Honorable Sindh High Court
which was disposed off with the directions that no coercive measures taken by lhe Tax Authorities till the decision of
the CIR{A) on the appeal filed which ls pending adjudication

In case of tax year 2010, the Adainonal Commissiongr inland Revenue (ACIR) hos passed an amended assessment
order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein lax on dividend and property income has been charged at
corporate tax rale (l.e. 35% for the yaar) by treating such Income as business Income of the Company under Fourth
Schedule fo the Ordinance. Further, the ACIR has digallowed provision of IBNR under section 34(3) of the Crdinance,
As a result of the amended assessmant demand of Rs 83,445 million has been created. The Company has filed appeal
and application for stay of tax demand before the CIR(A) againsl the above assessment order. The Gompany has also
filed 2 petilion against the said order before the Honorable Sindh High Courl which |s pending adjudication

Pursuant to the appeal, the learned CIR({A) vide combined appefiate order No.21 and 22/A-1 dated 10 March 2016 has
decided all issues in favor of the company. The lax depariment has filed further appes! before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland RevenuelATIR) in respect of the issues on which relief was allowed by the CIR{A) which Is pending adjudication

In case of tax year 2011, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an ameénded assessment
order under section 122(5A) of Ihe Ordinance whereln tax on dividend and property income has been charged al
corporate tax rale (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such income as business income of the company under Fourth
Schedule o the Ordinance. Further, the ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR, cizim of broughl forward loss for
the tax year 2008 and refund adjustments for tax years 2004 and 2009 in the amended assessment order . Moreover,
Waorkers® Wellare Fund @ 2% of Ihe accounting profit for the year has also been levied, As a resull of the amended
assessment demand of Rs.142.414 million has been created The Company has filed appeal and application for stay of
lax demand before the CIR{A) againsl the above assessimen! order,
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Pursuant o the appeal, the leamed CIR({A) vide combined appellate order No. 21 & 22/A-1 dated 10 March 2016 has
decided the following issues In faver of the Company-

{a)  Chargeability of tax on dividend Income and property income at corporale tax rate;
(b}  Provision for IBNR;
(e} Levy of Workers' wellare fund lor the year.

As regards, creditfadjustment of refunds available to the company, the CIR{A) has remanded back the issue with the
directions to verify the claim of refunds and allow the adjusiment as per law. The lax department has filed further
appeal before the Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue(ATIR) in respect of the issues on which reliel was allowed by the
CIR{A) which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2012, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue {ACIR) has passed an amended assessmenl
order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend and properly income has been charged at
corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such income as business income of the company under Fourth
Schedule to the Ordinance. Furiher, the ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR amounting to Rs. 33 million in the
amended assessment order. As a result of the amended assessment, demand of Rs. 106,663 milllion was crealed. The
company has obtained stay from the Honorable Sindh High courl in respect of the above tax demand, Further, agains!
the aloresald order, the Company also filed an appeal before CIR{A) which is pending adjudication. The stay from the
Honorable Sindh High Courl has been disposed off subsequently with the directions that no coercive measures taken
by the Tax Authorities till the decision of the CIR(A) on the appeal filed. The leamed CIR(A) has passed the appellate
order wherain boih the aforesaid Issues have been decided in favor of the Company.

The department has filed an appeal belore Appellate Tribunal, Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by the
GIR{A) which is pending adjudication.

In cage of tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner [nland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an amended assessmen|
order under section 122(54) of the Ordinance wherein lax on dividend and property incomae has been charged at
corperale tax rate (e, 35% for the year) by trealing such income as business income of the company under Fourth
Schedule to the Ordinance. Furher, the ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR, claim of brought forward loss for
the lax year 2012 and has also made an addition on account of disposal of fixed assels at less than fair markel
value(FMV) in the amended assessment order . As a resull of the amended assessment, demand of Rs. 95.008 million
was created. Against the aloresaid order, the company has filed an appeal before CIR{A). Pursuani to the appeal, the
leamed CIR(A) vide appellate order No. 10/A-1 dated 05 Ociober 2016 has decided the following issues in favor of the

Company.

(a) Chargeability of tax on dividend income and property income al corporate tax rale;
(b)  Provision for IBNR amounting to Rs. 33 million;
{c)  Additian on account of disposal of fixed assots.

Furthar the CIR{A) has remanded back lhe issues in respect of adjustment of brought forward loss or the tax year
2012 and credil of workers' welfare fund paid wilh the retum of income. The tax department has filed furlher appeal
belore the Appeilate Tribunal Inland Revenue(ATIR) in respect of the issues on which relfiefl was allowed by the CIR(A}
which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2014, case of the Company was selected for audit under section 177 of the ordinance and
subseguently, the Depuly Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed an amended assessment order under
section 122(1) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend income has been charged al corporate tax rate (Le. 24% for
the year) by treating such Income as business income of the company under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance.
Furthar, the ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR and has also made an addition on account of disposal of fixed
assels at less than Fair Markel Value(FMV) and motor car expenses paid in cash under section 21{1) in the amended
assessmenl order. As a resull of the amended assessmenl, demand of R 148 444 million was created. The Company
has obtained stay from the honorable Sindh High court in respect of the above tax demand. Furher, against the
aforesaid order, the Company has also filed an appeal before CIR(A) . The slay (rom the Honorable Sindh High Court
has been disposed off subsegquently with the directions that no coercive measures laken by the Tax Authorities lill the
decision of the CIR{A) on the appeal filed,

Pursuant to the appeal before CIR{4), the CIR{A) has passed the appellate order whereby issues in respecl of levy of
tax on dividend income al corporate tax rates, disposal of vehicles ai less than FMV and levy of WWF have been
decided in favor of the Company. However, issues in respect of levy of minimum tax under section 113, provision for
IBNR and motor car expenses in cash has been decided agains! the Company. The Company has filed further appeal
before the ATIR in respect of the issues decided against the Company except issue of motor car expenseas paid in
cash, which 15 pending adjudication
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In case of tax year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an amended assessmeni
order under seclion 122(5A) of the Crdinance wherein tax on dividend and property income has been charged al
corporate tax rate {i.e. 33% for the year) by treating such income as business income of the Company under Fourth
Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, the ACIR has levied Super tax under section 4B of the ordinance amounting to Rs.
27.743 million and Workers' Welfare Fund for the year. As & result of the amended assessment, demand of Rest.
234 287 million was created. The Company has obtained stay from the honorable Sindh High court in respect of the
above tax demand. Further, agains! the aforesaid order, the Company has also filed an appeal before CIR{A). The stay
from lhe Honorable Sindh High Court has been disposed off subsequenlly with the directions thal no coercive
measures taken by the Tax Authorities lill the decision of the CIR{A) an the appeal filed which is pending adjudication

Pursuanl to the appeal before CIR(A), the CIR{A) has passed the appellate order whereby [ssue of levy of tax on
dividend income at corporate tax rales has been decided in favor of the company whereas the issue of levy of Super
tax under section 4B has been decided against the company. Furthermore, the CIR{A) has remanded back the issue of
levy of WWF. The company has filed further appeal before the ATIR |n respact of the issue of levy of Super tax, which

is pending adjudication

The ACIR also passed an appeal effect order whereby a tax demand of Ra.2 776 million was crealed While passing
the afaresaid order, the ACIR did not consider the impact of paymenl of WWF for the year amounting 1o Rs.3 635
million. Accordingly, a reciification application was duly filed pursuani lo which the ACIR nas now passed a rectified
order whereby a refund of Rs.0.859 million has been created,

The ACIR also passed an order under section 221 of the Ordinance charging Super lax under sectian 48 amounting to
Rs 27.912 million. Without prejudice to the stance In appeal, the Company made payment ol Rs 20.000 milllen in
respect of tha Super tax liability under section 48 whereas the remaining Super tax demand of Rs 7913 millian was
adjusted against the refund of lax year 2008. The company filed an application with the ACIR requesting to annui the
order based on vanous legal grounds, however, no order was passed in this regard. Moreover, the Company also filed
an appeal before the CIR{(A) in respec! of the order passed under secfion 221 of the Ordinance. Pursuant to the above
appeal, the CIR(A) passed the appeliate order wherain the action of the ACIR in charging super tax under section 221
of the Ordinance was annulled. The Company has written a lefter lo the concemed taxation officer for passing appeal
effect order In line with the appellate order passed by the CIR(A), which [s pending, The tax department has also filed
further appeal before the ATIR agalns! the order passed by the CIR{A}, which |s pending adjudication,

The case lor tax year 2015 was funther selected lor audit under section 177 of the Ordinance. The company submitied
all the informalion requested through the Information and Document Requesl (IDR) pursuant to which a show-cause
nolice was issued in December 2017, The Company has submitted its response in respect of the issues raised in the
show-cause nolice, however, no assessment order has yel been passed,

In case of tax year 2016, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an amended assessmeni
arder under section 122{54) of the Ordinance whereln tax on dividend incoma has been charged al corporale 1ax rate
(i.e. 32% for the year) by trealing such income as business income of the company under Fourth Schedule to the
Ordinance. Further, the ACIR has disallowed the claim of expense on account ol healih administrative services under
secfion 21(c) of the ordinance and has also made an addition on accoun! of disposal of fixed assaets al less than Fair
Markel Value(FMV) in the amended assessment order. As a result of the amended assessmenl, demand of Rs,
105.130 million was created. The Company has filed stay application in respect of the above tax demand in the
Honorable High Court of Sindh and also filed an appeal against the aloresaid order before the CIR(A).

Pursuant lo the appeal before CIR(A), the CIR(A)} has passed the appellate order whereby issues in respect of levy of
tax on dividend Income at corporate lax rates and disposal of vehicles at less than FMV have been decided in favor of
the Company whereas the issue of non-deduction ol lax on payment for health plan administrative services under
section 21(c) of the Ordinance has been decided against the Company. The Company has nol fled further appeal
befare lhe ATIR in respec! of the issue decided agains! the Company.

The managemen! and tax advisor of the Company are confident that the above matters will be decided In the
Company's lavor. Accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

2019 2018
EARNINGS PER SHARE —-- (Rupees in "000) —
Profit (after tax) for the year 573,157 373,335
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ardinary shares (adjusted
for the effects of all dilulive polential ordinary shares) 191,838 400 188.2593 455
(Rupees)
Eamings per share 290 1.95
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties compnse of Holding Company, associates, related group companies, direclars of the Company, key
management personnel, post employment benefit plans and other related parlies. The Company in the normal course
of business camies out transaclions with various relaled parlies at agreed / commercial terms and conditions. Amounts
dua to / fram and other significant transactions, other than those disclosed else where in these financial statements,
are as follows;

|
Key management
Holding Company || P '#;’:"m personnel (incluging || Other related parties
directors)
o | ww || mw || 20 2009 | s | s || s
{Rupees in 000}
Transactions
Pramium underwnlten - . - - 09 540 344489 344681
Premum coflecied . . . - BO& 599 5007 348,118
Claims expense - - - - 192 118 M,799 26,782
Commigsion expense - - - - . . 1,267 15,507
Commission paid - - - - - - 2199 17,668
Fental income . - - - . - 30374 31,766
Dividend paid 513,49 163,063 . . . . . .
Key managemen! personnel compensation - . . - 28325 203,961 . -
Chaege in respect of gratuity Fund - - 15,864 12,120 - - - -
Charge in respect of poviden] Fund ‘ . 15,352 13,251 - - . -
Coniribution ko graiusty Fund - . 10311 10,311 - . . E
Conlribubon 1o providen! Fund . - 15,352 13.251 - - . -
Insumnce premiem paid . - . - - - 5813 4473
Rent paid . . - - : : 1.442 1,309
Balances
Pramium receivable . . - - . 297 17.520 18,058
Commission payable . . . * - . 3423 4,355
Other recevable 5,404 . - - - - 93415 137,499
Payabie to gratuity fund . - (19,363) (21,217) . . - -
Payabée 1o provident fund . . (3,651) (3.661) . . -
COMPENSATION FOR DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Directors Executives
w18 || 2018 2000 || 2018 019 || 2018
{Rupees In "000)
Fee for altending board
meating - - 1925 - 2,750 - . =
Managerial remuneration 14,111 12270 1,500 1,350 75,264 58,004
Bonus 13,663 13,308 - . 35,047 28,774
Ratiramant benefits 11.452
(including provident fund) 2448 2,129 - . 13.088
Housing and utities 7.833 B.841 - . 42,168 37,147
Medical expenses 1,411 1.227 - - 3,864 3633
Conyeyance allowance B78 446 - - 8802 7,286
Others 3,406 3.011 - - 3.047 5,244
43,550 Eﬂ!ﬂz 3,425 4,100 181,351 160,539
Number of persons 1 1 6 (3] 25 25
_—

Chiel Executive and execulives of the Company are provided with Company mamlained cars and residential
telephones.

Thes includes fee for attending Board meeling of all the six directors,
SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has five primary business segments lor reporling purposes namely fire and property damage, marine,
aviation and transpori, motor, accident and health and miscellaneous.
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Assets and liabilities, wherever passible, have been assigned o the following segments based on specific identification
or allocated on the basis of the gross premium written by the segments,

€018
Fire and
Particulars Marine, aviation Accident ang
:mpeﬂy and transpoct Maolar healt? Miscelaneous Total
(Rupess) in 000
Premaum receivable (indusie of Sindh
sales tax, leders| msurance lee and
adminsiretve surchags) 287 197 73981 1,800,904 75595 BT, 277 087 B44
Less: Federat Excise Duty (270,140) (87 .015) {235,360 {15.319) (117.952) {730,786
Federal insurance Fes (20.076) E272) [15,453) (3.527) (7672} (52.939)
Stamp duty (109) (17,850} {1.528) (5) {1.466) (20,954)
Giross writhen pramium [noksve 1,596 876 6287 1,547 564 152744 71187 5177105
of sdmiré ’
Gross difect premium 1,880,715 E17ETY 1,438,070 352 140 T43.581 §,102.187
Administative surcharge §.157 11,057 45, 454 B4 7606 74,818
1,896,676 B28.7H 1,547 554 352,744 751,187 8,177,105
e — . e
Insutance premium aamed 1.591 492 622,360 1487 015 Ig1de 757 643 4,319,758
Ingurance premiom caded o reinsurers (1,408,531} {368.,050) BN - {564,197} (2 432 965)
Nel Insuranca premium 182,901 263,310 1,405 B84 361,248 163,446 2,306,791
Commission ncome 286 377 105,542 15,749 - BA.763 457,21
Nt underwriiing Income 469,778 358,152 1,421,637 361,798 282209 2,694,024
Insurance clalms {250.464) {192,155} (712764} {336 912} (322727 (1815022}
Insurance claimd recoverad from
rainalrens 207 148 110,061 32,145 - 241,554 B11,549
Mal clalms {22 116} {82,004} (680,516) {335.917) (81,133 (1203473
Commisaion eapansa {173,222) {68,031) (180, 344) 18, 384) [93,548) 535,629}
Management expenses {338.254) (112.117) (275.964) (62.802) (133,954) [323,131)
Net Ingurance claims and expenses {534,152} {282.242) {1,136.92%) (418,158) {308,735) (2660293}
Preméum deficency E . X [608) : {508}
Underwriting resull (E4.404) 96510 28411 (57.558) (26,526) 233123
[meistmen income 465 848
Rentsl income 0.3
O income 49064
Ofher expenses {29,154)
Result of operating activities. 750,141
Finance cosd {14.063)
Proft rom wdow Wkalul operations 70,818
Profit bafores tax B0G, 897
s
Segmen assats 1,686,029 154,835 602,623 103,967 841,032 3,50R 486
Unaflocaled nssels - - , , 5002 574
Ansats of Window Takalul Operatans
- Operators Fund 47,559
8928519
—
Segmen! kabillbes 1782414 A58 270 1,300,780 335,908 990,930 4,868,340
Unalincaled kabilines . . - . 1,158,717
Tolal llabdtins of Wndow Takalul Opesations
« Cipemitors Fund 126,41
5,153,198
D —————
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2018

Fire and
Particulars ensey Marine, aviation Motar Accident and Miscet . Total

dawage and transport healih
(Rupess) in 000

Premim recesvable (nchskae of Sindh
sales (ax, lederal imsurance fee and
sdminisirative surchange) 1391924 621079 1628318 178075 1,065,361 5,064 TE1
Less: Fedarsl Excise Duly (177 313) (74,985) (214,535} (B,061) 1134 460) {607 B55)
Feders Insurance Fee {11.639) {5.286) {13.988) [3.687) {9,159) (43,752
Siamp duty (M) {13,038) (584 {2} {1.754) (15.424)
Gross wrifian poemsum (inclushve 1,202,542 017172 1,396,903 188,030 915,883 4,417 830
of Admanisrative Surchame)

Geesa direct premium 1,196,997 510,245 1,356,605 367, g0.5ae 4350514
Agmanigtrative surcharge 3,545 8527 42,298 625 9.001 673958
1,202,942 s an 1,388,903 388230 015,583 441753

Inswrance premiom eamed 1,142 155 518238 12267 324 580 842 a2 4100413
Insurance presmium ceded ko reinsuers (566,853) {276, 49) {13,702} . {BAT 114} (1.664,018)
Nef insurance premium 175,302 241 890 1,218,877 324 680 75,548 2,236,397
COmmissson ncome e 105464 835 . B1.792 418,168
Nat undenwiting income 403,255 347 358 1219932 324 580 157,340 2852566

Insurance claims {361,243) [167,322) {552 670) {305,825) {322.490) 11,709.350)
Insurance claims récovored
I reinsurers HAETR 42,000 1,304 ‘
Net claims (87,567) (85.312) 1551,366) [305,625) (102,846) {1.342.716}

26644 566534

Managemen! gxpenses (205.571) {90.191) (238,059 (62.944) {157.5786) {785,341)

Net insurance claims and axpentes 4%, 192 [238,466) [638,139) [384.635) {382,040} 12,280.477)
. . {20,503 . {20,503}

Premiym deficiency

Underwriting resufl {32,938) 108,852 261,793 {80,458) {25,700 251,59

Net imvestment income 134816
Rental Incgme 11,788
Cfver income 135,488
Diner expenses {42.60%)
Rezult of operating activities T 5108

Fnanoe cosls (5.168)
Profil [rom window lakafl operations 23877

Profit bedore Lax 530,567
S

Segmen| assets 1,115,378 278,362 437 284 100,152 780,582 1,721,806

Unalocated assets . . ; : ; 448720

Assels of Window Takaful Operabons

- Opasalor's Fund 142 098
TN

Segrmant llabdites 1.1, 490 324583 1032419 95,812 835,200 1542 604
Unafiocaed liabiites . . - . . BEan
Total Kablises of Window Takaful Oparations

- COperator's Fund 70,853
4,629 AR4

l Comemission expanse (133,054) (2.963) (W47.714) {16,068) (122817 (482,415)
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MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS 2018
Fair value
'Tm: through profit | |  Totat
or loss
{Rupees in "000)
As al January 1, 2019 845 665 1,719,298 2,564 963
Additions 326,413 6,255,816 6,582,228
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (656,002) (5627.2658) (8,183.2T1)
Net fair value gains (excluding net realised gains) - 76,216 76.216
Amortisation of premium / discount 6,143 105,196 111.338
Total 622,219 2,528,257 3,151,476
2018
Fair value
m“::r:; Ihrough profit| | Total
or loss
{Rupees In '000)
As al January 1, 2018 1,281,210 - 1,281,210
Additions - B,a447 271 8,447 271
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (435.0000 (8,737.111) (7TA72111)
Net fair value gains {excluding net realised gains) - (54,753) {54,753}
Amontlsation of premium / discount (545) 63,891 683,348
Total 345!55.5 1,716,208 2,564,862

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK

The Company issue coniracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises the
insurance nsks and lhe way the company manages them.

Ingurance risk

The Company accepts the insurance risk through s Insurance contracts where |1 assumes the risk of loss from
parsons or organisations that are directly subject lo the underlying loss. The Company is exposed o the uncertainty
surrounding the timing, frequency and severlty of claims under these contracts, The Company manages its risk via its
underwrting and reinsurance strategy within an overall risk management framework. Exposures are managed by
having documented underwriting limits and crileria. Reinsurance is purchased to mitigale the effect of potenfial loss to
the Company from indwvidual large or calastrophic events and also to provide access to specialist risks and to assist in
managing capilal, Reinsurance policies are wrilten with approved reinsurers on elther 8 proportional or excess of loss
treaty basis

Further, the Company adopls strict claim review policies including active management and prompt pursuing of the
claims, regular detailed review of claim handling procedures and frequent Investigation of possible false claims lo
reduce the insurance risk.

Concantration of insurance risk

A concentration of risk may also anse from a single Insurance contract issued 1o 8 particular demographic type of
policyhalder, within & geographical location or to types of commercial businesses. The Company minimises its
exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a number of reinsurers, who are dispersed over several
geographical regions.

Te oplimise beneflits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme
mmportance. There are a3 npumber of paramelers which are significant in assessing the accumulafion of risks with
reference |o the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards assoclated with The commercial /
Industrial / residential occupation of the insured. Detgils regarding the fire separation / segregation with respect to the
manufaciunng processes, storage, utilities, etc. are extracted from the layout plan of the insured facility. Such detalls
are formed part of the reports which are made available to the underwriters / reinsurance personnel for their evaluation,
Reference is made 1o the standard consiruction specifications as laid down by [AP (Insurance Association of Pakistan).
For instance, the presence of Perfect Parly Walls, Double Fire Proof Iron Doors and physical separation between the
buildings within an Insured's premises. It i1s basically the property coniained within an ares which is separaled by
another property by sufficient distance 1o confine insured damage from uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most
adverse conditions 1¢ that one area.

Mo
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Address look-up and decoding is the essenfial field of the policy data interphase of IT systems. |t provides instant
location which 18 dependent on data colleclion provided under the policy schedule, Al critical undenwriting information
is punched into the IT system / application through which a number of MIS reports can be generated to assess the
concentration of risk,

The ability to managa catastrophic risk is tied tn managing the density of risk within a particular area. For catastrophic
aggragates, the IT system also assigns precise geographic CRESTA (Catasirophe Risk Evaluating and Standardising
Target Accumulations) codes wilth reference to the accumulation of sums insured in force at any particular location
against natural penis. A risk managemen| solution is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in calastrophic
scenanos. || provides o way o better visualise the nsk exposures so the Company determines the appropriale amount
of reinsurance coverage 1o protect the business portfolio,

For Marine risks, complete underwriting details, besides sums insured and premiums, like vessel identification, voyage
input {sea / air / inland transil), sailing dates, origin and destinalion of the shipments, per carry limits, etc. are fed into
the IT system. The reinsurance module of the IT syslem is designed lo satisfy the requirements as laid down in {he
proportional treaty agreemenl. Shipmenl declarations are also endorsed on the policies. Respeclive reinsurance
cesslons are aulomatically made upaon (he posling of policy documaents,

The voyage cards so mainlained for the panticular sel of policies for a single vessel voyage are aulomalically logged
inlo the system showing actual aross, lreaty and nel exposure, bolh in terms of sums insured and premiums

Reinsurance arrangements

Keeping in view the maximum exposure In réspect of key zone aggregales, 8 number of proportional and non-
propartional reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the nel accounl in case of & major catasirophe. Apar
from Lhe adequate evenl limit which Is @ multiple of lhe lrealy capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional
trealy, accumulated losses on nel accounl can also be recoverad from Lhe non-proportional treaty which is very much
in line with the risk management philosophy of the Company.

In compliance of the regulalory requirement, the reinsurance agreemenls are duly submitted with Securilies and
Exchange Commission of Pakislan on an annusl basis.

The Company's class wise risk exposure (based on maximum loss coverage In a single policy is as follows:

2019
Maximum | |Reinsurance| | Highest net
sum Insured COvEr liability
({Rupees in "000) ——e--mmeames
Fire and property damage 132,650,608 132 205 667 datd 242
Marnine, aviation and transport 18,710,628 11,826,377 7884 251
Mator Bdd GH0 95, 000 549 6a0
Health 2.503,823 . 2,503,823
Migealinneous 16,703,812 16,687,108 16,704
Window Takaful Operations 5 009, 669 1,493,237 4,376,432
178,083,231 182 307 389 15 775 842
e —
2018
Maximum | |Reinsurance | | Highest net
sum insured cover liability
e {RUp2ES (1 'D00)

Fire and proparty damage 36,067,248 35,917 248 150,000
Marine, avialion and transport 17,608,304 14 086,643 3,521,651
Maltor 74,555 . 74,555
Health 2.740 836 . 2,740,936
Miscellanaous 10,000,000 9,945,000 55,000

Window Takaful Operations

M,

4,933,898

71,424 ba2

4,719,808 214,000

64,668 790 B, 756 152
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The table below sels out the concenlralion of insurance contract liabilities by type of contract:

2019
MNet
(assets)
resnesssameenees (RUpEES in "000) --—-

Fire and property damage 1,782,434 1,686,029 96,405
Marine, aviation and transport 458 270 354 B35 103,435
Molor 1,300,780 602,623 698,157
Heaith 335,926 103,567 231,859
Miscellaneous 990,930 B41,032 149,858
Window Takaful Operations 126,141 247 559 (121,418)

4,964 481 3!535.045 1,158,438

2018
Met
Gross Gross
liabilities /
liabilities assals ( ts)
(Rupees in '000)
Fire and property damage 1,134 4560 1,115,326 19,164
Marine, aviation and fransport 324 583 278,362 486221
Molor 1.032. 419 43T 384 585.035
Health 295 812 100,152 195,660
Miscellaneous 855,300 T80 582 64,718
Window Takaful Qperations 70,859 142,006 (71,137)
3,713,583 2.6&3;902 Edﬁ:

Uncertainty in the eslimation of fulure claims payment

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim occumence basis, The Company is lable for all insured
events thal occur during the term of the insurance contracl.

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on intimation to the Company. The estimation of the amount
is based on the amounl notified by the policy holder, managemen! judgment or preliminary assessment by the
independen! surveyor appeinied for this purpose. The initial estimates include expecled sefllemenl| cos! of the claims.
For the estimation of provision of claims incurred bul not reporied (IBNR), the Company uses actuarial advice as more
fully explained in note 3.7 lo these financial statements.

Thare are several variable factors which affect the amount and (iming of recognised claim labilites. However, the
managemant considers thal uncerlainly about (he amount and fiming of claim paymenis is generally resolved within a
year. The Company lakes all reasonable measures (o miligale the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim
setilements. However, uncerainty prevails with estimated claim liabilities and il is likely thal final setliement of these
liabilities may be different from recognised amounts,

Key assumptions

The principal assumplion underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and premium deficiency reserve 15 thal the
Company's fulure dlaim developmenl will follow similar historical patlern for occumence and reporling. The
management uses qualitative judgment to assess the exent lo which past occurrence and reporting patlem will not
apply in lulure, The judgment includes exiernal factors e.g. irealment of cne-ofi occurrence claims. changes in markel
factors, economic condilions, etc.

Sensitivities

As the Company anlers (nlo shorl lerm insurance conlracls, I does nol assume any significant impac! of changes in
markat conditions on unexpired risks. However, some resulls of sensitivity testing are set oul below:

B,
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Effect of 10% increase Effect of 10% decrease
| __inclaims ________Inclaims
Total Total
comprehen- Equity comprehen- Equity
sive sive income
(Rupees in '000)

Fire and property damage (1613) (1.613) 1613 1613
Marine, aviation and transpor {5,829) {5.829) 5829 5,829
Motor (48,324) (48,324) 48 324 48324
Heaith (23.921) (23,921) 23,821 23,821
Miscellaneous (5,760) (5,7680) 5,760 5760
Window Takaful Operations {14.637) (14,637) 14,637 14,637

(100,084) (100,084) 100,084 100,084

Statement of age-wise breakup of unclaimed insurance benefits
Total ise breakup
Particulars smount 1lo6 Tlo12 13to 24 25t0 36 Beyond 38
months months months moaonths months
{Rupees in "000)
Claims not encashed _ a3}/ 3121 3,295 3,131 2721 13.50=4
Financial risk
(i) Market risk
Market risk |s the risk that the falr value or fulure cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes In
market variables such as inleresl rates, foreign exchange rates and markel prices.
{a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the rsk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates,
The Company s exposed to interest / mark-up rate risk in respect of the following:
2014
Interest | mark-up bearing Hon-interest ! mark-up bearing
Intorest rales | Maturity uplo[Maturty ater| o |Maturty uplo Maturity ater| oL | Totl
onbyear | oneyear gneyear | OPEyear
{Rupees in 000}
Fin assels
Cash and bank 11.25% to 12.5%] 117588 . 117998 15.112 - 15,112 133,110
Investments TI%-10.11% 446,835 | 1,940,683 | 2.387 618 153.858 - TEI A58 | 3150478
insieance | reinsurancs receivebies - . . 1,424 867 . 1424 BT | 1,424 BT
Reinsurance recoveries againsl culstanding claims . ' . 1.012 584 - 1,012,984 | 1,012,984
Loans and other receivables . . . 331 949 . 331948 131949
Salvage recovenes accrued - . . 59 865 . 59,885 55,885
Window Takaful Operalions - tolal assels - . . 221,803 . 223803 | 33803
564933 1940883 2505616 3.832.458 . 3812458 6.338.074
Einancial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims [ncluding IBNR] - - - 1.512.227 - 1512227 | 1,512.227
[nsurance { remsurance payables - - . 1,299,750 - 1.299.750 | 1,299,750
Oiher creditors and accruals - . . 741,761 - Ta1,761 741,761
Bomowings A 45% - T.16% 0,597 126,922 171,518 - - - 177.515
Wingow Takatul Qperslions - wial kabilities - N 83218 4 83,218 83,218
50,587 126,922 177,519 3635956 2 3636958 3814475
43)} T 814330 1 813,761 228,087 {85 502 -~ 1955022523509
i

O
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2018
Interesl | mark-up bearing Konsintarest | mark-up beaning
Total
Intores! Rates | Maturity upto | Maturity after Sub ol Maturity upto | Maturity after| o\
oheyear | onkysar oneyear | oneyear
{Rupees In 000}

Fingncial assets
Cash and bank 65% - 10% 472,992 . 472,992 a9 - 3929 476921
Investments 73%-1031% | 1,150,446 | 38870 | 1,539,316 | 1,025,647 - | 1,025,647 | 7564963
Premeum due bat unpaid = - . - ' -
|msurance / reinsurance recevables = - - 1,101,170 - L1010 | 100,070
Reinsurance recoveries agains! outstanding claims - - - 854,041 - 854,041 | 854041
Loans and other receivables - . - 281,542 . 251,542 | 251,542
Salvage recoveries accrued - . - 46, 148 - 46 148 a6, 148
Window Takaful Operations - latal assets E . . 136,207 - 125,207 145,207

1,623,438 388,870 2,012,308 3407 GB4 - 3,407 684 5419592
Financial llabilitles
Provision for outstanding claims [including IBNR] - B - 1,314 812 - 1,314 812 | 1,314,812
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsuners - . . 103,314 - T03314 | 703314
Other creditors and accruals - . . 102,778 - 702,778 Toa.rre
Bomrowings 4 45% - 7 16% 24265 a4 616 | 118881 . s 5 118 881
Window Takahsl Operations - total Eabdifies - . - 43,301 - 49301 49,301

24265 94 616 198,881 2.770.20% . 2,770,205 2889086
1,588,173 294 354 1 B90.427 BIT AT9 - 637,479 2530506
————

Sensitivity analysis

Interest / mark-up rale risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates, Sensitivily to interest / mark up rate risk arises from
mismatches of financial assels and liabilitles thal mature or re-price in a given perlod. The Company manages these
mismatches through nsk managemant strategies where significani changes in gap position can be adjusted. Borrowing
arrangements have variable rate pricing thal is dependent on the Karachi Intes Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR) as indicated In
respective notes. The table below summarises Company's interest rate risk as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and
shows lhe effects of a hypolhetical 1% Increase and a 1% decrease in inleres! rales as at the year end,

Profit and Loss
Increase Decrease

{Rupees in '000)
2019
Cash flow sensitivity - Vanable rate financial habilities (1.775) 1.775
Cash liow sensitivity - Variable rate linancial assets 281
2018
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities {1,189) 1,189
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 454

(b) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the valua of a financial assel or liability will flucluale due |o changes in foreign curmency
rates, Forelgn exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due 1o transaclions in foreign
currencies As of the reporting dale, the Company does not have material assels o liablities which are exposed o
loreign currency risk.

{il) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeling obligalions associated with its financial
liabiliies. To guard against the risk. the Company mainlains baltance of cash and olher equivalents ang readily
markelable securities. The malurity profile of assets and liabilitles are also monitored 1o ensure adequate liquidily is
maintained.
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to setile its obligations
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materally disadvantageous.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant malurdly groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date 1o the conlractual maturity dale on an undiscounled cash flow basis.

Provision for oulstanding claims [including IBNR)
Amounis due to other insurers / reinsurers

Other creditors and accruals

Borrowings

Window Takaful Cperations - total liabilities

Provision for cutstanding claims [including IBNR]
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers

Other creditors and accruals

Borrowings

Window Takaful Operations - total liabilities

Credit risk

2018
Carrying Contractual Upto one More than
amount cash flow year one year
{Rupees in "000)
1,512227 1512227 1,512,227 -
1,299,750 1.288.750 1,299,750
741,761 741,761 741,761 -
177,519 177,518 50,597 126,922
83218 83,218 83,218 -
3814475 3475 3687563 126022
2018
Carrying | |Contractual| | Upto one More than
amount cash flow year one year
(Rupees in '000)
1.314,812 1,314,812 1,314,812
703,314 703,314 703,314
702,778 702,778 702,778 -
118,881 118,881 24,265 84,616
48,301 49,301 __45.301 -
2,784,470 S4.616

2 B89.086

2,889,086

Credil risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one parly to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to Incur a financlal Ioss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitaring
credil exposures by underiaking transactions wilh & large number of counterparties in various industries and by
continually assessing the credil worthiness of counterpariies.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business aclivilies. As a
resull, any change In economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability 10 meet contraciual obligations in
similar manner. The Company’s credil risk exposure s nol significantly differenl [rom thal reflected in the financial
statements. The management monitors and limits the Company's exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client's
exposure and conservative estimales of provisions for doubtful assets, il any, The managemen! is of the view thal it is
not exposed to significant concentiration of credit risk as ils financial assetls are adequalely diversified in entities of
sound financial standing. covering various industrial sectors.

Investments

Equily

Governmenl securilies
Debl securities

Term deposits

Loans and other receivables

Insurance / reinsurance receivables
Insurance / reinsurance receivables

Heinsurance recovernes against outstanding claims

Salvage recoveries accrued
Cash and bank

Window Takaful Accounts - total assels

M

2019 2018
(Rupees in "000)
497,577 225,821
2,150,874 1,614,142
104 025 -
300,000 525,000
331,949 251.542
1.424 867 1.101.170
1.012.984 854,041
59,885 46,148
133110 477,161
223,803 125,207
6,338,074 5420232
_— T —
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The Company did nat hold any collaleral against the above during the year. The management continuously monitors
the credit exposure towards the policyholders and other insurers | reinsurers and makes provision agamst those
balances considered doubtful of recovery, The movemenl in the provision for doubtful debl account is shown in notes
13.3 and 13.4. The remaining pas| due balances were not Impaired as they relate to a number of policy holders and

other insurers / reinsurers for whom there Is no recent history of defaull

The credit guality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference lo extermnal credit rafings as follows:

Rating Rating

Agency || Short Term | | Long Term
Bank deposits and term deposit receipts
Faysal Bank PACRA Al AL
JS Bank PACRA Al+ AA-
Standard Chartered Bank PACRA At+ Al
Bank Al-Habib PACRA Ale Al
MCB Bank Limiled PACRA Als AlA
Habib Metropolitlan Bank PACRA Als Ab+
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA
Soner Bank PACRA A+ Al
United Bank Limited VIS Al+ ASA
Bank Islami PAGRA Al A+
Mational Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited VIS A1 AL
Mablink MicroFinance Bank Limited PACRA Al A
Khushall Micro Finance Bank Limited VIS Al As
Telenor Micra Finance Bank PACRA Al At
Finca Microfinance Bank PACRA Al A
Mrsp Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA Al A
Habib Bank Lid VIS Al+ AAA
Summil Bank Limited vis A-3 BBB-
U Micro Finance Bank Limited VIS Al A

The age analysis of premiums due but unpaid and amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers is as follows:

2019 2018
{Rupees In "000)

Upto 1 year 1,174,479 1,004,389
1-2 years 180,434 64,603
2-3 years 58.604 51.439
Cver 3 years 187 377 142 500
1,608,680 1,262 831
Window Takaful Oparations
Upto 1 year 141,336 B0,720
Upta 1 - 2 years 9,740 2,030

151,076
e —

62,750
e —

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of counterparties
whose aggregale credil exposure is significant in relation to the Company's tolal credit exposure. The Company's
portfolio of financlal assets subject o credit risk is broadly diversified and transactions are entered inlo with diverse
credil worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credil risk.

e
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Seclor wise analysis of premiums due but unpaid
Foods and beverages

Financial services

Pharmaceuticals

Textile and composites

Plaslic indusiries

Engineering

Other manufacturing

Miscellanaous

Window Takaful Operations
Textile

Financlal services
Enginearing

Pharmmaceuticals

Food

Othar manufacturing

Others

2019 2018
——{Rupees in "000)-—-
25,228 37,198
115,707 71,201
76,227 30,105
155,041 93,740
285 :
62,642 48,361
159,168 37,105
241,854 340,266
836,152 858,086
6,577 8,368
4,780 205
14,106 a7
500 737
11,065 7,404
2,961 70
33,633 13,203
74,522 30,174

—_— e, s

The credit quality of amount due from other insurers and reinsurers can be assassad with refarence 1o extemnal credit

ratings as follows

Amount due ”ﬂ::":l:i' Prepaid

from other reinsurance

against 2018 2018
insurers | ding premium
reinsurers iai ceded
{Rupees in "000)
A- or above (Including PRCL) 637,867 835,318 794,259 2,267,444 1,500,085
BBE and B+ 31,501 41,252 39,224 111,877 168,017
Others 104 169 136,414 138,891 379,474 304,079
Total 773,537 1 01259841. 872,374 2,758 BO5 2072 081
Re-takaful Prepskd res
Amountdue | | recoveries h';,ul
from re-takaful againsi contribution 2018 2018
operalors outstanding coded
claims
{Rupees in "000)
A or abave 13,763 34T 35,993 B4.533 70,782
BEB 1668 419 440 1,025 1,867
Others 122 (6.665) 3az3 {6,220) 1,542
14.051 —_E-sua1= ﬂ —?913.; —_?i-lgi

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abllity to continue as a going
concerm in order to provide retumns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure lo reduce the cost of capilal, In order to maintain or adjusl the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amoun! of dividand paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets lo

reduce debt.

The Company currently meets the pald up capital requirement as required by Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan.

o
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2019 2018
~—— [Rupees in '000) ~---

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financlal assets and financial liabilities
Financial assels
Loans and recelvables :
Cash and bank 133,110 4771681
Investments-term deposits 300,000 525,000
Insurance | relnsurance recalvables 1.424 867 1,100,170
Reinsurance recoveries against oulstanding claims 1,012 984 854 041
Loans and other receivables 331,949 251 542
Salvage recoveries accrued 559885 48 148
Window takaful pperalions - (olal asseats 223.803 125,207

3,486,598 3,380,289
investments - heid to maturity
Govemnmment securities 322,219 320,865
Investments - fair value through profit or loss
Equity securities 497 577 225,821
Commercial paper and term finance certificate 154,025 x
Governmenl securilies 1.837.655 1,493 477

2,520,257 1,719,268
Financial liabililies
Amortised cost
Provision for cutstanding claims [including IBNR] 1512227 1,314,812
Amounis due to other insurers | reinsurers 1,299,750 703,314
Cther credilors and accruals 741,761 702,778
Borrowings 177,519 118,881
Window Takaful Operations - total iabilities 83,218 49,301

3814475 2,883,086

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid lo Iransfer a liabllity In an orderly transaction
between markel participants al the measurement date,

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company Is a going contern wilhoul any intention of
requirement lo curtail matarially the scale of its operations or o underiake a ransaction on adverse lamms

Financial assets which are tradable in an open markel are revaiued at the markel prices prevailing on the reporting
date, The estimated fair value of all olher financlal assets and liabififies 15 considered not lo be significantly different
from the respective book values

The table below analyses financial instrumenis carried al fair value. The differeni levels have been defined as follows:

E Level 1: quoted pnces (unadjusied) in aclive markets for identical assels or labilities.

Level Z: inpuls other than quoted prices Included wilhin Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability,
either directly (Le., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or llability that are nol based on observable markel data (uncbsarvable inputs) The
Company has no ilems to report in this level.
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The Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

2018
Level1 || Level2 || Level 3
S — Rupeas In "000- v —
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds - 497 577 -
Commercial paper and term finance certificate - 194,025 -
Governmenl securities . 1,837 655 -
Non - financial assets - measured at fair value
Froperty and equipment (Building) ‘ . 552 475
Invesimenl properlies - - 376,995
2018
Level1 || Level2 || Level3 |
Restated
e s smnness RUPEES iN 00— e
Financial assots - measured at fair value
Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds - 225,821 -
Government securities - 1.493 477 -
Non - financial assets - measured at fair value
Invesimeni properties - - 358950

Buildings and investment properties are camied at revalued amounts [level 3 measurement) determined by a
professional valuer based on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in notes 5 and 7 o these financial
slatements. The valuaiion experis use a markel based approach fo arive at the fair value of the Company's
properties. The markel approach uses prices and other relevani information generaled by market transactions
invalving identical or comparable or similar properties. These values are adjusied (o reflect the current condition of the
praperties. The effect of changes in the uncbservable inpufs used in the valuations cannot be determined with
certainty, accordingly a quantitative disclosure of sensitivity has nol been presented In these financial statements.

The carrying amounts of all oiner financial assels and labllities refecled in these financal statements approximate
their fair values.

39 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial stalements were authorsed for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on

-

40 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Board of Direclors has proposed a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2019 of Re. 0,782 per share,
amounting lo Rs 150 millian in ils meeting heid on March 5, 2020. The eflect of this distribution will be incorporated in
the financial statements of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2020.

*
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Figures in these financlal stalements have been rounded off lo the nearest thousand of rupees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of IGI General Insurance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of IGI General Insurance Limited - Window
Takaful Operations (“the Operator”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in funds and
the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the hest of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
funds and the cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of Operator’s affairs as at December 31, 2019 and of the
total comprehensive income, the changes in funds and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Operator in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial stateinents that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwe.com/pk>
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Operator’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Operator or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Operator’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Operator’s internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Operator’s ability to continue as a going concern.
1f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Operator to cease to continue as
a golng concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in funds and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), and are in
agreement with the books of account;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Operator’s business; and;

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Noman Abbas Sheikh.

AF. Ferguson & o.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Dated: March 19, 2020



iG] GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

Assets

Property and egquipment
Imvestments
- Equity

- Term deposits
Cther receivables
Takaful / retakaful recelvables
Deferred wakala fee
Receivable from OFF [ PTF (including Qard-e-Hasan)
Accrued investmen! income
Taxation - payment less provisions
Retakaful recoveries against sutstanding claims
Defered commission expense
Prepayments
Cash and bank
Total assets

Funds and labilities
Funds sttributable to Operator and Participants

Operator's Fund [OPF)
Statulory fund
Accumuiated profit

Waqgf | Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF)
Ceded money

Accumulated deficit

Balance of PTF

Qard-e-Hasan
Liabilities

PTF Underwriting Provisions
Cutstanding claims including IBNR
Uneamed conlribution reserve
Conirbution deficiency resene
Unearned retakaful reward
Lineamed wakala fee
Contripution recehed in advance
Takatul / retakaful payables
Otner greditors and accrugls
Accrued expenses

Fayabie to OFF / FTF

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

Note

0om o=~y i

= 3
L B |

19
1"
12

101

18
17

21
20

13
14

15

16

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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2019 2018
Operator | | Participants’ Operator | | Participants’
Fund | |TakafulFund|| “92"9% || “eind  ||Takatul pung|| O9T02E
Y 1 T 1 —

72 - 72 21 5 21
44 44 ] A0 40 80
20,500 188,378 205,875 46,000 &0,500 106,500
B.015 86,775 G4, 790 8 BAT 78,832 &7.493
- 151,075 151,076 . 62,750 82,750
- 42 468 42 4B . 21,819 21,818
187,608 285 187,891 73,181 144 73,325
437 4.574 5011 283 431 714
2 2,611 2,611 4 320 420
. 2854 28,531 ’ 16,641 15,541
15518 . 15,519 7,976 - 7.4976
150 36,756 36,906 225 25,7585 25,980
15,217 90,540 105,757 5,703 46,473 52176
247 558 633,036 BAD, 555 142,085 312,805 454,901
50,000 - 50,000 50,000 ‘ 50,000
71,418 - 71,418 21,437 . 21,137
121,418 = 121 418 71,137 . 71,137
- 500 500 - 500 500

5 {21,729} {21,729) {14,182 (14,192}

- (21,229) (21,229} i13.692) {13,652)

- 0,000 60,000 . 28,000 28,000

- 112,475 112,475 - 52,075 52,075 |
- 141,879 141,678 - 70,587 70,587
o718 8,718 - 3,084 3,954
- B.942 8,942 g 5 480 5 460
42 488 . 42 468 21818 . 21,918
- 378 378 = 478 a7a
4,604 128,817 133,421 2,376 66,077 68,355
45 443 62,759 108,202 17,866 53 BEQ 71,755
1,340 1,681 3.0 732 916 1,648
12 286 127,605 155,891 28,144 45 181 73,325
126,141 544,265 720,408 70,958 298 447 358 455
247 555 633,036 880,555 142,056 312,805 454 901

Chief Executive Officer
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IGI GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2019

Note 2019 2018
--==-{Rupees in "000)-----
Participants' Takaful Fund
Net contribution revenue 17 172,429 51,355
Retakaful rebate earnad 21 18,487 10,014
Met underwriting income 190,926 61,374
Met claims - reported / setiled 18 {206,154) (76,313)
Charge of contrbution deficlency reserve (5.765) (3,954}
(211.919) (80.267)
Direct expenses 22 (6,982) {1,764}
Underwriting resuit (27,975) (20,657)
Invesiment income 24 18,026 1,101
Profit on bank deposits 9,622 2527
Less: Modarib's share of investment income 25 {5,110} (807)
Deficit for the year (7.537) (17,8386)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year {7,537} !1?.936;
Cperators’ Fund
Wakalah fee 20 108,841 44,193
Commission expense 19 {35,730) {14,894)
General administration and managemant expenses 23 {10,870) (8,375)
£2,241 20,924
Modarib's share of FTF investmen! income 25 5110 a07
Profit on bank deposits 1,069 399
Investment income 24 aozv 2,030
Cither charges 26 (628) {583)
Prafit before tax 70,818 23877
Taxation 27 {20,537) .
Profit after tax 50,281 23877
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 50,281 23,677

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I1GI GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Balance as al January 1, 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2018

Profit for the year

Othaer comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at December 31, 2013

Balance as al January 1, 2018

Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2018
Deficit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at December 31, 2019

Qperator's Fund
Accumulated
Statutory fund (deficit) / profit Total
(Rupees in "000)
50,000 (2,540) 47,460
- 23877 23677
50,000 21,137 71437
- 50,281 50,281
ED!H-G 71,418 121,418
Participants’ Takaful Fund
Accumulated
Ceded money deficit Total
{Rupees in '000)
500 3,744 4,244
- (17,9386} {17.936)
500 {14,192) {13,692)
(7.537) {7,537
500 (21,729) {21,229)

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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IGI GEMERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Note

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Takaful activities
Contributions received
Retakatul contribution paid
Claims paid
Re-lakaful and other recovenes recelved
Retakaful reward received
Commission paid
Wakalah fes received
Wakslah fes paid
Other takaful {payments) / receipis
Met cash inflow from takaful activities

Other operating activities
Income tax paid
General and other expenses paid
Met cash outllow from other operaling activities

Total cash inflow from all operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Profit recaived

Fixed capital expanditure

Qard-=-Hasan paid to PTF

Payrent for investmenis

Total cash {outflow on} / inflow from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Card-e-Hasan received from OPF
Total cash inflow from financing activities

Met cash {outflow on) / inflow from all activities
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 12.2
Reconcillation to statement of comprehensive income

Operating cash flows

Depreciation expenses

Return on bank balances and invesiment
Increase in liabilifies

Increase in assels other than cash
Profit / (deficit) for the year

2019 2018
erator's Participants’
OpFund TakafurFund Aggregate | | Aggregate
{Rupees in '000)
s 391,087 | 381,087 171 162
- (75,112) {75,112) (40,768)
- {171,868) {171,868) (44,276}
- 13,224 13,224 571
g 21,979 21,979 13,137
(34,237) = (34.237) (11,911}
51,892 : 51,892 28,043
. {51,882 {51,892} (28,043)
- {1,588} (1,586) 3,146
17 655 125,832 143 487 51,061
261 {2,291) {2 030) {536)
(8,762 - {9,762) {15,266)
(8,501 {2,297) (11,792) {15,602)
B.154 123 547 131,695 75,250
3,098 21 401 25,339 4,436
{78) 3 {78)
{28,000) . {28,000) -
: (121,375} {121,375} {80)
{24,140} {99,574) (124 114} 4,256
] 1 28,000 | | 28,000 | - ]
F 28,000 28,000 -
[15,58E) E1.567 35,581 79,615
51,703 106,973 158,676 75,061
35,717 158,540 194 257 158,676
B,154 123,541 131,635 75,259
(27 - (27} (25)
3,047 21,405 25 347 4,436
(54,921} (295,788) {350, 684) {315,792)
93,133 143 285 236,418 241 863
50,261 (7.537) 42,744 T 5741

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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IGI GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

1

2.2

2.3

24

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

IGI General insurance Limited ("the Operator"), a Packages Group Company, was incorporated as a public limited
company on November 18, 2016 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 {(now the Companies Act, 2017). The registered
office of the Operator is situated at 7th floor, The Forum, Suite No. 701-713, G-20, Block 9, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton,
Karachi. The objects of the Operator include providing general insurance services (in spheres of Fire, Marine, Motor,
Health and Miscellaneous) and general takaful services.

The Operator was granted authorisation on June 20, 2017 under Rule 6 of the Takaful Rules, 2012 to undertake Window
Takaful Operations ("WTQO") by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP"} under Takaful Rules,
2012 to carry on general takaful in Pakistan.

The Operator transferred statutory fund of Rs. 50 million in a separate bank account for the Window Takaful Operations
as per the requirement of circular 8 of 2014. The Operator has formed a Waqf for Participanis' Fund by executing the
Wagf deed dated February 27, 2017 and deposited a cede money of Rs. 0.5 million. The cede money is required to be
invested in Shari'ah compliant remunerative instrument which may be used to acquire immovable Wagqf property if
Shari'ah and taw so warrants. Wagqf Deed governs the relationship of Operator and participants for management of takaful
operations, investments of participants' funds and investments of the Operator's funds approved by the Shariah advisor of
the Operatlor. The Operator commenced activities of WTO on July 1, 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan compnse of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (|IASB)
and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules
2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and Takaful Rules, 2012.

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the
Insurance Rules, 2017, the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and the Takaful Rules, 2012 shall prevail.

These financial statements reflect the financial position and results of operations of both the Operator's Fund (OPF) and
Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF) in a manner that the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Operator and PTF
remain separately identifiable.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investments in mutual
funds which are carried at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Operator operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Operator's functional and
presentation currency.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are effective in
the current year:

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and amendment {effective for period ending on or after June 30, 2019). IFRS 9 replaces
the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance
on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating
impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from [AS 39.

e
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Further, IFRS 4 provides two alternative options in relation to application of IFRS 9 for entities issuing contracts within the
scope of IFRS 4, notably a temporary exemption and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible
entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 from the
effective date to remove from the profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur from
applying IFRS § before IFRS 17 is applied. The QOperalor has adopted the temporary exemption which allows the operator
to defer the application of IFRS 9 until December 31, 2021. For the companies adopting the temporary exemption, the
IFRS 4 requires certain disclosures which have been disclosed as follows:

Temporary exemption from application of IFRS 9

As part of an insurance company, the management has opted temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as
allowed by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) for entities whose activities are predominantly connected
with insurance. Additional disclosures, as required by the |IASB, for being eligible to apply the temporary exemption from
the application of IFRS 9 are given in note 2.4.2.

Fair value of financial assets as at December 31, 2019 and change in the fair values during the year ended
December 31, 2019

OPF PTF
Financial assets that do not meet the SPPI criteria --—-=- (Rupees in '000) -~
Mutual funds
Opening fair value 40 40
Increase / (decrease) in fair value 4 4
Closing fair value 44 44

There are certain amendments to the standards and new interpretations that are mandatory for the Operator's accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect
on the Operator's operations and are therefore not stated in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet
effective:

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the accounting and reporting standards
would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard, amendments or interpretation:

Effective date (accounting
periods beginning on or after)

- 1AS 1 - 'Presentation of financial statements' (amendments) January 01, 2020
- 1AS B - 'Accounting policies, change in accounting estimates
and errors' (amendments) January 01, 2020

The management is currently in the process of assessing the impact of these standards on the financial statements of the
Operator.

There are certain other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Operator's accounting

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 but are not considered to be relevant or will mot have any significant effect
on the Operator's operations and, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
accounting policies have been consistently applied for all the years presented.

Property and equipment

Tangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to statement of comprehensive income on the straight line method so as to
write-off depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged from the

month in which an asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is
disposed of.

Mre,
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The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted, if impact on
depreciation is significant. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the
Operator and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense.

Takaful contracts

The takaful contracts are based on the principles of wakala. The takaful contracts so agreed usually inspire concept of
tabarru (to donate for benefit of others} and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of eliminating the element of
uncertainty.

Contracts under which the Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF) accepts significant takaful risk from another party (the
participant) by agreeing to compensate the participant if a specified uncertain future event (the takaful event) adversely
affects the participant are classified as takaful contracts. Takaful risk is significant if a takaful event could cause the PTF o
pay significant benefits due to the happening of the takaful event compared to its non-happening. Once a contract has
been classified as a takaful contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the takaful risk
reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

The PTF underwrites non-life takaful contracts that can be categorised into following main categories:

Fire and property

Fire and property takaful contracts mainly compensate the participants for damage suffered to their properties or for the
value of property lost. Participants who undertake commercial activities on their premises couid also receive compensation
for the loss of eamings caused by the inability to use the takaful covered properties in their business activities. These
contracts are generally one year contracts except some contracts that are of three months period.

Marine, aviation and transport
Marine takaful covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo, terminals, and any transport or property by which cargo is

transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination. These contracts are generally for three
months period.

Motor

Moter takaful provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic accidents and against third party
liability that could be incurred in an accident. These contracts are generally one year contracts.

Health

Health takaful provides coverage against expenses incurred during the hospitalisation due to sickness, emergency and
accidents. These contracts are generally one year contracts.

Miscellaneous

All other various types of Takaful contracts are classified in miscellaneous category. These contracts are normally one
year contracts except some engineering contracts that are of more than one year peried. Whereas, normally travel
contracts expire within one month time.

Deferred Commission expense

Commission incurred in obtaining and recording takaful are deferred and recognised as an asset. These costs are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income based on the pattern of recognition of contribution revenue,

Reserve for uneamed contribution

Contribution written under a policy is recognised as income over the pericd of takaful from the date of issuance of the
policy to which it relates to its expiry. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the peried of the policy,
contribution is recognised as revenue in PTF in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. The portion of
contribution written relating to the unexpired period of coverage is recognised as unearned contribution by the PTF. This
liability is calculated by applying 1/24 method as specified in the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017.
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Re-takaful ceded

These are contracts entered into by the Operator with re-takaful operators for compensation of losses suffered on Takaful
contracts issued. These re-lakaful contracts include both facuitative and treaty arrangement contracts and are classified in
same categories of Takaful contracts for the purpose of these financial statements. The Operalor recognises the entitled
benefits under the contracts as various re-takaful assets.

The deferred portion of re-takaful contribution is recognised as a prepayment in PTF. The deferred portion of re-takaful
contribution ceded is calculated by using 1/24 method.

Claims expense

General takaful claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, related internat and external
claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settiement of claims, a reduction for the value of
salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

The Operator recognrises liability in respect of all claims incurred upto the reporling date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident
giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in an takaful contract. The liability for claims include
amounts relating to unpaid reported ctaims, claims incurred but not reporied (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs,

The provision for Incurred But Not Reporled (IBNR) claims is determined by the Operator as required under circular No. 9
of 2016 issued by the SECP. As per the SECP circular No. 9 of 2016 an Operator shall estimate IBNR claims reserve
based on the prescribed method provided in the guidelines. Guidelines also allows the use of any other alternative method
of determining IBNR, if found more suitable for the risk class, provided that the amount estimated under the alternative
method shall not be less than the amount calculated under prescribed method. The prescribed method for estimating
IBNR claim reserve is the chain ladder method based on paid claims hereinafter called ‘Incurred But Not Paid’ or ‘IBNP'.
The Basic Chain Ladder (BCL) method uses a run off friangle to estimate the development factors for each accident
pericd which are further used to estimate the ultimate paid claims. Data from settlement registers is used in the BCL
modeis. Lags are determined to be the difference between the ‘date of loss’ and ‘date of claim payment’. Monthly lags are
used since it reflects the claim development pattern within a given year and the back testing supports the same. Cnce
IBNP has been determined using BCL, the outstanding claims are deducted to arrive at IBNR on paid basis.

Under alternative method IBNR is delermined on reporied basis. IBNR (reporied basis) is much similar to IBNR (paid
basis) but is calculated using a different methodology. It does not use either IBNP or outstanding claims to estimate |BNR
rather, is determined using BCL method. Development factors are determined for each accident period to estimate the
ultimately reported claims directly. Intimation registers are used in the BCL model where lags are calculaled as the
difference between the ‘date of loss’ and 'date of intimation’.

The analysis is carried out separately for each class of business and results determined through this alternative method
are compared to the results of prescribed method and higher of the two are set as the final reserve.

Re-takaful recoveries against claims

Re-takaful recoveries against outstanding claims is recognised as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be
received.

Commission, other acquisition costs and re-takaful reward

Commission expense and other acquisition costs are charged to the OPF at the time the policies are accepted. Re-takaful
reward from re-takaful operator is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying takaful policy by the PTF. This
income is deferred and brought to statement of comprehensive income as revenue in accordance with the pattern of
recognition of the re-takaful contribution to which it relates. Retakaful reward from re-takaful operator is arrived at after
taking the impact of opening and closing unearned re-takaful reward. Profit on re-takaful contracts, if any, which the PTF
may be entitled to under the terms of re-takaful, is recognised on accrual basis.

Contribution deficiency reserve

The Operator is required as per the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of
contnbution deficiency for the class of business where the unearned contribution reserve is not adequate to meet the
expected future liability, after re-takaful from claims, and other supplementary expenses expected o be incurred after the
reporting date in respect of the unexpired takaful contracts in that class of business at the reporting date. The movement
in the contribution deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. ’

The Company has recorded contribution deficiency reserve on the recommendation of actuary for fire and property
damage, marine, health and miscellaneous business.
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Takaful surplus

Takaful surpius attributable to the paricipants is calculated after charging all direct cost and setting aside various
reserves. Allocation to participants, if applicable, is made after adjustment of claims paid to them during the year.

Wakalah fee

The Operator of Window Takaful manages the general takaful operations for the participants and charge wakala fee to
PTF to meet the general and administrative expenses of the Operator including commissions to agents at following rates:

Percentage
Class 2019 2018
Fire and property 30.0% 33.5%
Marine, aviaticn and transport 35.0% 35.0%
Motor 30.0% 30.0%
Health 25.0% 27.5%
Miscellanecus 25.0% 27.5%

The deferred portion of wakala fee is recognised as a prepayment in PTF and unearned wakala fee in OPF. The deferred
portion of wakalah fee is calculated by using 1/24 method.

Mudarib's share - PTF

The Operator also manages the participants' investment as Mudarib and charges 20% (2018: 25%) of the investment
income earned by the PTF as Mudarib's share. It is recognised on the same basis on which related revenue is recognised.

Qard-e-Hasan

If there is a deficit of admissible assets over liabilities in PTF, the Operator provides interest free loan 'Qard-e-Hasan' to
PTF from OPF so that PTF may become solvent as per Takaful Rules, 2012.

Qard-e-Hasan from PTF can be recovered by the QOperator over any period of time without charging any profit.

Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the cc_)qsidefation to be paid
in the future for the services received, whether or not billed to the Operator.

Provisions are recognised when the Operator has a present legal or constructive cbligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the Operator's profit and
loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in the statement of comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in the statement of comprehensive income respectively.

Current tax

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing 1ax rates or 1ax rates expected to apply to the
profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also include adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalised during the current period for such years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilittes are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

A,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits with banks, stamps in hand and short term
finances.

Investments

The Operator invests in Shariah compliant financial instruments only. All investments are initially recognised at cost, being
the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction cost, except for investments classified as fair value
through profit or loss in which case transaction costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. These are
classified into the following categories:

Fair value through profit or loss
- Held to maturity
- Available for sale

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

These financial assets are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuation in prices or
are part of a portfelio for which there is a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

Subsequent to initial recognition these are measured al fair value by reference to quoted market prices with the resulting
gain or loss being included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Held to maturity

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to
maturity and are initially measured at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, these are measured at amortised cost using the
effective yield method.

Any premium paid or discount availed on acquisition of held to maturity investments is deferred and amortised over the
term of the investment using the effeclive yield.

Income from held to maturity investments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield
on the investments,

The difference between the redemplion value and the purchase price of the held to maturity investments is amortised and
taken to the statement of comprehensive income account over the term of the investment.

Available for sale

Available for sale investments are those non-derivative investments that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any other category. These are primarily those investments that are intended to be held for an undefined
period of time or may be sold in response to the need for liquidity. It also includes investments in associated undertakings
where the Operator does not have significant influence. The Operator follows trade date accounting for ‘regular way
purchase and sales' of investments.

Subseguent to initial recognition, these are stated at market value. The Operator uses stock exchange quotation at the
reporting date to determine the market value of its quoted investments.

Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when the Operator's right to receive such dividend and
bonus shares is established.

Gains / {losses) on sale of available for sale investments are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.
Other receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subseqguent to initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost.

e,
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3.22

Date of recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or
market convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Operator commits to purchase or
seli the investment.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under an agreement to resell (reverse repo) are nol recognised in the financial statements as
investments and the amount extended to the counter party is included in other receivables. The difference between the
sale and repurchase price is recognised as income and included in other income.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when
there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Operator intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Operator that is engaged in providing services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The Operator accounts for segment reporting
of operating results using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Qrdinance, 2000 and the Insurance
Rules, 2017, The reporied operating segments are also consistent with the internal reporting provided to Board of
Directors who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The
performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment.

The Operator has five primary business segments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor, health and
miscellaneous.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them. Those
assets and liabilities which can not be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reporied as unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities.

Impairment

The carrying values of the Operator's non-financial assets are reviewed at each financial year end for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists,
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable
amount. The resulting impairment loss is taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees al the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange gains or losses are
included in income currently.

Expenses of management

Expenses allocated to the takaful business represent directly attributable expenses. Expenses not directly allocable to
takaful business are charged to OPF and allocated on the basis of gross contribution written during the year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reporied
amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Operator's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the
circumstances.

%(o
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The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Operator's financial statements are as follows:

i) classification of takaful contracts (note 3.2);

ii) provision for unearned contribution (notes 3.4 and 17};

iii) provision for contribution due but unpaid and amount due from other takaful / re-takaful operators (notes 3.4 and 9);
iv) contribution deficiency reserve (note 3.9);

v} provision for unearned wakala fee {notes 3.11 and 20);

vi} classification of investments (notes 3.17,6 and 7 );

vii)  residual values and useful lives of property and equipment (notes 3.1 and 5);

viii}  allocation of management expenses {notes 3.22, 22 and 23);

ix) taxation (notes 3.15 and 14.1}.

Note 2019 2013
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT —---—-(Rupees in '000}------
Operating assets 5.1 72 21
Following is the movement of operating assets:
OPF
2019
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written down | Depreciation
As at Additions [ As at As at For the year / As at value as at rate (% per
January 1 {disposals} | December31 | January1 (disposals) | December31 | December 31 annum)
{Rupees in "000)
Computer equipment 55 78 133 34 27 61 72 33.33%
OPF
2018
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written down | Depreciation
As at Additions | As at As at For the year | As at value as at rate (% per
Jantary 1 {disposals) | December31 | January1 {disposals) | December 31 | December31 annumy}
{Rupees In '000)
Computer equipment 55 - 55 9 25 34 21 33.33%
INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES - MUTUAL FUNDS
2019 2018
Impal Net fair Imair Net fair
MPar™ 1 yalue | Market P value | Market
Cost ment / . Cost ment /
rovision gains value rovision gains value
P (note 31) P (note 31)
———tr—enee{Rupees in '000) {Rupees in '000) -~rre——
OPF
At fair value through profit or loss
Alfalah GHP istamic Income B Growth Units 10 1 11 10 - - 10
Al-Ameen lslamic Cash Fund 10 1 11 10 - - 10
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund 10 1 11 10 - - 10
MCB Al- Hamra Islamic Fund 10 1 11 10 - ~ 10
40 4 44 40 - - 40
PTF
At fair value through profit or loss
Alfalah GHP |slamic Income B Growth Units 10 1 I 10 - - 10
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund 10 1 11 10 - - 10
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund 10 1 11 10 - - 10
MCB Al- Hamra Islamic Fund 10 1 11 10 - - 10
40 4 44 40 - - 40

%A#(’o
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[ OPF [ PTF ]
2019 2018 2019 2018
INVESTMENTS IN TERM DEPOSITS ~erme- (RUpeeS in '000) --meere ———x ~ (Rupees in '000) -----—
Held to maturity
Term deposits 20,500 46,000 189,375 60,500

These term deposits carry expected profit at the rate of 12% to 13.5% (2018: 10%) per annum and are due to mature in
June 2020.

Note [ OPF B PTF ]

2019 2018 2019 2018
OTHER RECEIVABLES (INCLUDING QARD-E-HASAN)} = (Rupees in '000) =---ear —-mnen {Rupees in '000) ------
Receivable from |G| General Insurance Limited
{operator} - 771 - -
Qard-e-hasan from Operator's Fund - - 32,000 28,000
Others 8.1 B.015 7,896 54775 50,832
8,015 8 667 86,775 78,832

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) raised a demand of tax of Rs 430.412 million
under section 23(1) of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act (SSTA), 2011, in respect of sales tax on reinsurance obtained
from foreign re-insurers by the conventional business of Operator. The department has aiso imposed a penalty of Rs
21.520 million.

The depariment alleged that the conventional business of Operator has received re-insurance services from foreign re-
insurance companies for the period from July 2011 to December 2014 and it is the contention of the department {hat these
services are liable to sales tax under SSTA, 2011. The department attached the bank accounts relating to Window Takaful
Operations and directed the Operator's banker to issue pay orders from these bank accounts to SRB. The pay orders of
Rs 58.028 million from the Operator's bank accounts (Rs. 50.381 million from PTF's bank account and Rs. 7.637 million
from OPF's bank account} were issued by the Operator's banker on December 27, 2018 upon direction of SRB. The
Operator had reimbursed the said amount withdrawn from these bank accounts to Window Takaful Operations from its
conventional business since the amount withdrawn pertain to conventional business only. Accordingly, a receivable
against the amount withdrawn of Rs. 58.028 million and a corresponding liability to conventional business has been
recorded in these financial statements.

The Operator filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals) SRB on December 28, 2018 against the above order.
The management in hearings held during the year before the Commissioner (Appeals}) SRB has submitted that:

- The payments to foreign re-insurance companies are not a service and is merely a re-distribution of the insurance
risk and therefore the insurance premium. There is no vaiue addition involved since in essence it is a sharing of the
insurance risk between the insurer and re-insurers, The management believes that the gross premium charged by
the insurer was already subject to Sales Tax on the gross amount, hence it is illogical to again subject it to sales tax
upon its re-distribution keeping in view the fact that neither any service is being provided to the policy holder nor
any value addition is being made.

- These risk sharing arrangements have been made by the Operator with the re-insurance companies incorporated
outside Pakistan with no legal or physical presence therefore it is the view that the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax
laws are not applicable io these type of arrangements and are outside the jurisdiction of Sindh Sates Tax laws.

The management believes that even if it is assumed that Sindh Sales Tax on re-insurance provided to insurer / insurance
companies is applicable, the law does not provide any mechanism for calculating the basis on which such tax will be
imposed and its related payment and the same would have been claimed as adjustable input tax by the Operator against
its output tax liability.

The Operator had also fited a constitutional petition before the Honourable High Court (the Court) of Sindh at Karachi on
December 28, 2018 seeking protection from the above mentioned coercive action taken by the tax department. The Court
has suspended the above mentioned attachment notice and also instructed the bank that the said pay orders should not
be encashed.

Subsequent to the year end, the Court has disposed of the constitutiona! petition together with the other similar petitions
and has ordered SRB not to enforce recovery of impugned demand before expiry of seven days of the receipt of the final
decision in appeal or stay application by the Caommissioner (Appeals) SRB, whichever is earlier.

The management, based on the advice received from their tax and legal advisors, is confident that this matter is likely to
be decided in favour of the Operator. The Operator shall repay the amount withdrawn fram Window Takaful Operations to
conventional business once the matter is decided in favour of the Operator and the payorders are cancelled accordingly.

(o
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2019 2018
9 TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES - PTF --—--- {Rupees in '000) ——----
Due from Takaful participant hoiders 74,622 30,174
Less: provision for impairment of receivables from takaful participant holders - -
Due from other insurers / retakaful operators 76,554 32,576
Less. provision for impairment of due from other insurers / retakaful operators - -
151,076 62,750
Note [ OPF | PTF |
2019 2018 2019 2018
~-—- (Rupees in '000} «--—- -—--m- (Rupees in '000) ------
10 RECEIVABLE FROM OPF / PTF INCLUDING
QARD-E-HASAN
Wakala fee 119,261 41,763 - -
Qard-e-hasan to Participant Takaful Fund 10.1 60,000 28,000 - -
Mudarib fee 5,110 907 - -
Others 3,234 2,511 286 144
187,605 73,181 286 144
Note 2019 2018
10.1 Qard-e-hasan --=---- (Rupees in '000) ---—-
Opening balance of Qard-e-hasan 28,000 -
Qard-e-hasan transferred from OPF during the year 1011 32,000 28,000
Qard-e-hasan returned by PTF during the year - -
Closing balance of Qard-e-hasan 60,000 28,000
10.1.1 The Operator fund has funded the deficit in participant takaful fund by way of an interest free loan (Qard-e-hasan) in
accordance with the Takaful Rules, 2012. In the event of future surplus in the Participant Takaful Fund to which a Qard-e-
hasan has been made, the Qard-e-Hasan shall be repaid prior to distribution of surplus to participants.
11 PREPAYMENTS
Note [ OPF [ PTF ]
2019 2018 2019 2018
----- - {Rupees in '000) --—---- —---- {Rupees in '000) -——-
Prepaid retakaful contribution ceded 17 - - 36,756 25,755
Others 150 225 - -
150 225 36,756 25,755
12 CASH AND BANK
Cash and cash equivalent
-Policy stamps in hand - - 383 125
Cash at bank
-Savings accounts 15,217 5,703 90,157 46,348
121 15,217 5,703 90,540 46,473
12.1  These savings accounts carry expected profit rates ranging from 5.5% to 12.5% ( 2018: 5.05% to 5.25%) per annum.
12.2 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement:
( OPF [[ PTF ]
2019 2018 2019 2018
------- {(Rupees in '000) -----~ ------—- {Rupees in '000) ------
Cash and bank balances 15,217 5,703 90,540 46,473
Term deposits having maturity of 3 months or less 20,500 456,000 68,000 60,500
z“ ! 35,717 51,703 158,540 106,973
/ /O
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Note

TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL PAYABLES

Due to takaful participants / retakaful payable
re-takaful operators

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Commission payable

Federal excise duty and sales tax

Federal takaful fee

Payable to |Gl General Insurance Limited -
operator

Others

8.1&14.1

OPF H PTF |
2019 2018 2019 2018
------ (Rupees in '000) «=---— --=-— (Rupees in '000} ------
4,604 2,278 128,817 66,077
16,456 9,746 - _
455 - 8,394 2,262
- - 235 455
27,808 7,376 52,331 50,391
724 764 1,799 761
45,443 17,886 62,759 53,869

This includes an amount of Rs. 19.882 million representing provision for taxation net off advance tax which will be
transferred to operator for the purpose of annual tax return of the Operator

Note
PAYABLE TO OPF / PTF
Wakala fee
Qard-e-Hasan to Participants' Takaful Fund 10.1.1
Mudarib fee
Others

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no contingencies and commitments as at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

NET CONTRIBUTION REVENUE

Written gross contribution

Less: Wakalah fee

Contribution net off wakalah fee

Add: Unearned coninbution reserve - opening

Less: Uneamed contribution reserve - closing
Contribution earned

Re-takaful conlribution ceded

Add: Prepaid re-takaful contribution ceded - opening
Less: Prepaid re-takaful contribution ceded - closing
Re-takaful expense

Net contribution

Less:

NET CLAIMS / TAKAFUL BENEFITS

Claims paid

Add: Outstanding claims (including IBNR) - closing

Less: Qutstanding claims (including IBNR) - opening
Claims expense

Re-takaful and other recoveries received

Add: Re-takaful and other recoveries in respect of
outstanding claims - closing

Less: Re-takaful and other recoveries in respect of
outstanding claims - opening

Re-takaful and other recoveries revenue

Net claims expense

Net claims expense

W

Less:

| OFF [ PTF |
2018 2018 2019 2018
------- {Rupees in '000) ----— -—-— {(Rupees in ‘000} -—
- - 119,261 41,763
32,000 28,000 - -
- - 5,109 907
286 144 3,235 2,511
32,286 28,144 127,605 45,181
Note 2019 2018
--- (Rupees in '000) —
435,435 190,078
20 (108,841) (44,193)
326,594 145,885
70,587 22,030
{141,879) (70,587)
255,302 97,328
(93.874) (60.981)
{25,755) (10,747)
36,756 25,755
(82,873) (45,973)
172,429 51,355
171,868 44,276
112,475 52,075
{52,075) (3,826)
232,268 92,525
(13,224) (571)
(28,531) {15,641)
15,641 -
(26,114) (16,212)
206,154 76,313
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Note 2018 2018
-—- (Rupees in '000) ----
NET COMMISSION EXPENSE
Cornmission paid or payable 43,273 19,247
Add: Deferred commission - opening 7,976 3,623
Less: Deferred commission - closing {15,519) (7,976}
35,730 14,894
NET WAKALA FEE
Gross wakala fee 129,390 58,280
Add: Deferred wakala fee - opening 21,919 7,832
Less: Deferred wakala fee - closing (42,468) (21,919)
108,841 44,193
RETAKAFUL REBATE
Reward on re-takaful received 21,979 13,137
Add: Unearned re-takaful reward - opening 5,460 2,342
Less: Unearned re-takaful reward - closing (8,942) (5,460)
18,497 10,019
DIRECT EXPENSES
Tracker cost 6,727 1,723
Bank charges 142 20
Inspection fee 49 -
Other expenses 64 21
6,982 1,764
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and other henefits 28 6,233 4925
Shariah advisor fees 1,260 1,050
Printing and stationery 698 75
Computer running expenses 1,875 2,161
Depreciation 27 25
Legal and professional charges 73 -
Training expenses 523 64
Motor expenses 67 38
Advertisement 1 15
Other 113 22
10,870 8,375
INVESTMENT INGOME Note | OPF ]| PTF ]
2019 2018 2019 2018
< --—-— {Rupees in '000) ~==mnr —mem- (Rupees in '000) -
Income from equity securities
Net fair value gains 4 - 4 -
Income from term deposit receipts
Return on term deposits 24.1 3,023 2,030 16,022 1,101
3,027 2,030 16,026 1,101

This includes Rs. 0,056 million (2018: Rs. 0.026 million) profit earned on piacement of cede money in term deposit.

e,
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MODARIB'S FEE

The shareholders of the operator manage the participants’ investments as a modarib and charge 20% (2018: 25%)
modarib share of the investment income earned by PTF.

2019 2018
-—- {Rupees in '000) ----
OTHER CHARGES

Bank charges 21 12
Auditors' remuneration 608 571

629 583
TAXATION

The current tax charge for the year is Rs. 20.537 million at the tax rate of 29 % and the same has been recorded in these
financial statements hence no tax reconciliation has been made.

Executives
2019 || 2018
---- {Rupees in '000) ----

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managenrial remuneration 3,688 2,546
Bonus 318 289
Contribution to defined benefit plan 300 255
Rent and house maintenance 1,260 1,146
Utilities 280 255
Medical 138 106
QOthers 249 329

6,233 4,925
Number of persons 2 2

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Relaled parlies comprise of related group companies, directors of the Operator, key management personnel, major
shareholders, post employment benefit plans and other related parties. The Operator in the normal course of business
carries out transactions with various related parties at agreed / commercial terms and conditicns. Balances and
transactions with the related parties other than those disclosed in the relevant notes to these financial statements are as
follows.

[ OPF [ PTF ]
2019 2018 2019 2018

------- (Rupees in "000) -~ -—— (Rupees in '000} -------
Transactions with related parties
Contribution underwritten - - 812 1,013
Contribution collected - - 730 927
Wakalah fee income 108,841 44 193 - -
Wakaiah fee expense - - 108,841 44193
Mudarib's share on investment income - income 5,110 907 - -
Mudarib's share on investment income - expense - - 5110 907
Commission expense - 44 - -
Claims expense - - 136 -
Balances with related parties
Payable to |G| General Insurance Limited - operator 27,808 7,376 52,331 50,391
Receivable from 1GI General Insurance Limited - operator - 771 - -
Contribution receivable - - 82 86
Commission payable - 40 - -

%,
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SEGMENT REPORTING
2018 - PTF
Fire and 2 _—
Partlculars property Waain, desslion Mator Health Miscellanaous Tatal
s and transpart
maga
{Rupees in 000}
Contribution recewable {(inclusive of
federal excise duty, federal takaful
fee and administrative surcharge) THi7a 26358 238,776 135,955 12 426 493,694
Less: Federal Excise Duty (10,358) (4.128) (30.248) [7.732) {1.427) (53,905
Federal Takaful Fee {681) {220) (2,065) {1.273) {108} (4,354)
Gross wiitten contribution (inclusive 68,135 22,010 206,467 127.944 10,880 435 435
of adminisiralive surcharge)
Gross direct cantribution 67 827 21,916 205 847 127,544 10,588 434 122
Administrative surcharge 312 L] 615 - 202 1,313
68,139 22010 205,462 127,944 10,880 435 435
Takaful contribution eamed 35,914 13628 117 693 77,585 6,472 255,302
Takatul contnbution ceded 1o retakaful (54, 036) (17, 604) {4.857) - (6,176) (82,873)
Mat contribution revenue (14,122} [4,178) 112,836 77,5085 286 172429
Retakatul rebate 12,175 4,147 are - 1,303 18457
Mat underwriting income {1,847) (29) 113,708 77,595 1,509 190,926
Takalul clams {8,135] (13,834} {29,581} (103,213} (7.505) {232,268)
Takatul claims recovered from
retakaful 8,000 12,460 54 - 5,600 26,114
Net claims [(135) {1,374) (89,527) (103,213) {1,805} (206,154)
Contrioution deficiency expense 2520 (35} - {7,895y {#51) {5,765)
Direct expense 41) (13 {5,848) (75) (5) {6,862)
Underwriting result g7 (1,451) 7,333 {33.652) {562) (27 875}
Met investment income 25,548
Mudanb share an investment incame {5.110)
Deficit for the year {7,537}
Corporate segment assets B1,426 16,099 96,665 51,351 13,287 258,84
Corporate unallocated assets - - - - = A74 205
Total assets 81,426 16,059 95,668 51,351 13,287 833,036
Conporate segmenl llabilities a7.500 20,381 252 340 125,506 15,647 511,374
Corporate unaliecated liabilities - - - - A 82,89
Total habilites &7.500 20,381 252,340 125,506 16,647 504 265
20M9 - OPF
Fire and ;
Particulars property Waring; ailatan Holor Health Misceflaneous Total
da and transpor|
{Rupees in ‘000)
Vakala fee 18,752 7,327 50,197 25,303 2,262 108,841
Commission expense (8,820) (2.687) {19,552} [3,621) a71) (35,730
Managemen! expenses {1,687) {548) {5,143) (3,211) (271) (10.870)
8,135 4112 25,602 22471 1.020 62 241
Profit on bank deposit 1.065
|nvestment income - nel 3,027
Mudarit's share on investment Income 5110
Other expensa {528)
Prafit befare tax 70,818
Corporate sagment assets -
Corporate unallocaled assets 247 559
Tolal assets 247,559
Corporale segment iabilities -
1246, 141

Corporate unallocated labilities
Total habilties

e
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2018 - PTF
Fire and Marine, aviation
Particulars property ne, Motor Health Miscellaneous Total
and transport
damage
(Rupees in '000)
Contribution receivable (inclusive of
federal excise duty, federal takaful
fee and administrative surcharge) 58,575 13,643 97,448 40,315 5,559 215,540
Less; Federal Excise Duty (7.596}) (2,087) (12,888) (315) 897 (23,561)
Federal Takaful Fee {505) (115) {837) (396) (48} {1,801}
Gross written contribution {inclusive 50,474 11,461 83,725 39,604 4,814 190,078
of administrative surcharge)
Gross direct contribution 50,427 11,449 83,701 39,604 4,810 189,991
Administrative surcharge 47 12 24 - 4 87
50,474 11,461 83,725 39,604 4,814 190,078
Takaful contribution earned 23,589 7.051 39,027 25,417 2,244 97,328
Takaful contribution ceded to retakaful (32.064) (9.549) {1,710) - (2.650) (45,973}
Net contribution revenue (8,475) (2,498) 37,317 25417 {408) 51,355
Retakaful rebate 6,847 2,260 339 - 573 10,019
Net underwriting income (1.628) {238) 37,656 25,417 167 61,374
Takaful claims (12,878) (3.712) (32,686} (40,192) (3,059) (92,525)
Takaful claims recovered from
retakaful 10,344 3,201 44 - 2,623 16,212
Net claims (2,532) {511) (32,642) (40,192) (436) (76,313)
Contribution deficiency (2.520) (58) - (1,358) (18} (3,954)
Direct expense (12} (2) (1,740) {9 (1) (1,764)
Underwriting result {6.692) (809) 3,274 {16,142) {288) (20,657)
Net investiment income 3628
Mudarib share on investment income (907)
Deficit transferred to balance of PTF (17,936)
Corporate segment assets 56,438 7,468 41,229 14,324 6,605 126,064
Corporate unallocated assets - - - - - 186,741
Total assels 56,438 7,468 41,229 14,324 6,605 312,805
Corporate segment liabilities 70,730 10,495 106,319 40,441 7,977 235,962
Corporate unallocated liabilities - - - - - 62,535
Total liahilities 70,730 10,495 108,319 40,441 7,977 298,497
2018 - OPF
Fire and Mari viation
Particulars property anne, aviatio Motor Health Miscellaneous Total
and transport
damage
{Rupees in '000)
Wakala fee 12,517 3.854 17,322 9,641 859 44,193
Commission expense (5,882) (1,485) (6,021) (1,126} (380) {14,894)
Management expenses {2,224) (505) (3,689) (1,745) (212) {8,375)
4,411 1,864 7,612 6,770 267 20,924
Profit on bank deposit 399
Investment income - net 2,030
Mudarib's share on investment income 907
Other expense (583)
Profit before tax 23,677
Corporate segment assets -
Corporate unallocated assets 142,036
Total assets 142,096
Corporate segment liabilities -
Corporate unallocated liabilities 70,959
70,959

Total liabilities

e,
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At fair value through
profit or loss
OPF PTF
MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS == {Rupees in '000) ------
As at January 1, 2018 40 40
Additions - -
Disposals (sale and redemptions) - -
4 4

Net fair value gains {excluding net realised gains)
As at December 31, 2019

a4 44

As at January 1, 2018

Additions 40 49
Disposals {sale and redemptions) -
Net fair value gains (excluding nef realised gains) -
As at December 31, 2018 40 40

MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFUL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK

The Operator issue contracts that transfer takaful risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises the takaful risks
and the way the Operator manages them.

Takaful risk management

Takaful risk

The risk under any one takafu! contract is the possibility of the covered event occurring and the uncertainty of the amount
of the resulting claim. The Operator is exposed to the uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of
claims under takaful contracts and there is a risk that actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the takaful liabilities.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar takaful contracts, the smaller will be the relative variability about
the expected outcome. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a change in any subset of
the portfolio. The Operator has developed its takaful underwriting strategy to diversify the type of takaful risks accepted
and within each of these categoeries the Operator’s takaful contract are for a maximum period of one year.

Factors that aggravate takaful risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical
location and type of industry covered.

(a) Frequency and severity of claims

Political, environmentat, economical and climatic changes give rise to more frequent and severe extreme events
(for example, fire, theft, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, hurricanes, typhoons, river
flooding, electric fluctuation, terrorism, war risk, damages occurring in inland transit, burglary, loss of cash in safe
and cash in transit, travel and personal accident, money losses, engineering losses and other events) and their
consequences (for example, subsidence claims). For certain contracts, the Operator has also limited the number
of claims that can be paid in any policy year or introduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any policy

Takaful contracts which are divided into direct and facuitative arrangements are further subdivided into five
segments: fire, marine, moter, health and miscellaneous. The takaful risk arising from these contracts is
concentrated in the territories in which the Operator operates, and there is a balance between commercial and
personal properties / assets in the overall portfolio of covered properties / assets. The Operator underwrites takaful
contracts in Pakistan only.

The Operator manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate re-takaful arrangements and
proactive claims handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geography. The Operator has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the
ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent ¢claims. Takaful contracts also entitie the Operator to pursue
third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). The ¢laims payments are limited to the
extent of sum covered on cccurrence of the covered event.

h,
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The Operator has entered into re-takaful cover / arrangements, with local and foreign re-takaful operators having
good credit raling by reputable rating agencies, to reduce its exposure to risks and resulting claims. Keeping in view
the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, @ number of proportional and non-proportional
facultative re-takaful arrangements are in place {0 protect the net account in case of a major catastrophe. The effect
of such re-takaful arrangements is that the QOperator recovers the share of claims from re-takaful companies
thereby reducing its exposure to risk. Aparl from the adequate event limil which is a multiple of the {reaty capacity
or the primary recovery from the proportional re-takaful arrangements, any loss over and above the said limit would
be recovered under non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management philosophy of the
Operator.

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the re-takaful agreements are duly submitted with the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) on an annual basis.

The Operator has claims department dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims incurred whether
reporied or not. This depariment investigates and setlles all ¢claims based on surveyor's report / assessment. The
unsettled claims are reviewed individually al least semi-annually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the
underlying facts, contraclual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Operator actively manages and pursues
early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure 1o unpredictable developments.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Claims reperied and the development of large losses / catastrophes is analysed separately. The shorter seltlement
period for claims allows the Operator to achieve a higher degree of certainty about the estimated cost of claims
including IBNR. However, the longer time needed o assess the emergence of a subsidence claim makes the
estimation process more uncertain for these claims.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in seftling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value, re-takaful and other recoveries. The Operalor's claim are for shorter seitlement pericd generally
and Operator takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims
exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final cutcome may
be different from the original liability established. The liability comprises amount in relations to unpaid reported
claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims settlement costs and a provision for unexpired
risks at the end of the reporting pericd.

Liability in respect of outstanding claims is based on the best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed. In
calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Operator estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio based estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of
takaful claims and takaful contribution eamed in prior financial years in relation to such claims) and an estimate
based upon actual claims experience using predetermined basis where greater weight is given to actual claims
experience as time passes.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Operator considers any information
available from surveyor's assessment and information on the cost of setiling claims with cases having similar
characteristics in previous periods. Claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis separately.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with takaful contracis are complex and subject to a number of variabies that complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. This exposure is geographically concentrated in the Pakistan enly.

The Operator uses internal data to measure its related estimated claim liabilities. Internal data is derived mostly
from the Operator's monthiy claims reports, surveyor's reper for particular claim and screening of the actual takaful
contracts carried out to derive data for the contracts held. The Operator has reviewed the individual contracts and in
particular the industries in which the participant companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This
information is used to develop related provision for outstanding claims (both reported and non-reported).

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and contribution deficiency reserve is that the
Operator's future claim development will follow similar histerical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The
management uses qualitative judgment to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not
apply in future. The judgment includes external factors e.g. freatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in
market factors, econcmic conditions, etc.

Changes in assumptions

The Cperator has not changed its assumptions for the takaful contracts as disclosed in paragraphs (b) and (c}
above.

(o
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(e) Sensitivity analysis

The analysis of exposure described in paragraph (¢} above is also used to test the sensitivity of the selected
assumptions to changes in the key underlying factors. Assumptlions of different levels have been used to assess
the relative severity of subsidence claims given past experience. The key material factor in the Operator's exposure
lo subsidence claims is the risk of more permanent changes in gecgraphical location in which Operator is exposed.

The Operator makes various assumptions and technigues hased on past claims development experience. This includes
indications such as average claims cost, uitimate claims numbers and expected loss ratios. The Operator considers that
the liability for takaful claims recognised in the statement of financial position is adequate. However, actual experience will
differ from the expected outcome.

As the Operator enters into short term takaful contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market
conditions on unexpired risks. However, results of sensitivity testing assuming 10% change in the claim incidence net of
recoveries showing effect on underwriting results and balance of wagfis set out below.

2019 2018
Underwriting| | Balance of | |Underwriting | Balance of
results Wagqf results Waqf
—-—- (Rupees in '000) -----eees ---—-- (Rupees in '000) ----=ce-.
10% increase in average claim cost
Fire and property damage {14} (14) (253) (253)
Marine, aviation and transport (137 (137) {51) {31)
Motor (9,853) (9,953) (3,264} (3,264)
Health (10,321) {10,321} {4,019) (4,019)
Miscellanecus (191) (191) (44) (44)
(20,615) (20,615) (7,631) (7,631)
10% decrease in average claim cost
Fire and property damage 14 14 253 253
Marine, aviation and fransport 137 137 51 51
Motor 9,953 9,953 3,264 3,264
Health 10,321 10,321 4,019 4,019
Miscellaneous 191 191 44 44
20,615 20,615 7,631 7,631

Concentration of takaful risk

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single takaful contract issued to a particular type of participant, within a
geographical location or to types of commercial business. In order to minimise the financial exposure arising from large
claims, the Operator, in the normal course of business, enters into agreement with other re-takaful operators, who are
dispersed over several geographical regions.

The Operator has certain single takaful contracts which it considers as risk of high severity but very low frequency. The
Operator cedes substantial part of these risks to the re-takaful companies on its panel and its maximum exposure on any
single policy is limited to the amount of Rs, 2,285 million.

The maximum class wise risk exposure (in a single policy) is as follows:

2019 2018
Gross sum | | Retakaful | |Highest net| | Gross sum || Retakaful | |Highest net
covered cover liability covered cover liability

—--——eemee- (Rupees in'000) {Rupees in'000) --=-rre—emnee-
Fire and property damage 3,473,908 1,189,237 2,284,671 3,395,066 3,370,066 25,000
Marine, aviation and transport 1,800,000 90,000 1,710,000 1,400,000 1,260,000 140,000
Motor 44,000 39,000 5,000 44,000 39,000 44,000
Health 1,888,810 - 1,888,810 940,270 - 940,270
Miscellaneous 551,761 175,000 376,761 04,832 89,832 5,000

7,758,479 1,493,237 6,265,242 5,874,168 4,758,898 1,154,270

o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Operator has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Operator's risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Operator's risk management policies.

Risk management framework

Every takaful operator is exposed to a wide range of nisks, some discrete and some interdependent; inlegrated risk
managemenf entail strong governance processes; ensuring greater accountability, transparency and risk awareness in
underwriting, investment and strategic decisions. The Board of Directors lake ultimate responsibility for supervising the
Operator's risk management framework. Risk management framework covers the need to review the strategy of a
Cperator and to assess the risk associated with it.

The Audit Committee oversees compliance by management with the Operator's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Cperator.
The Audit Commiltee is assisted in its oversight role by an Intemal Audit Function. Internal Audit undertakes both regular
and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commitiee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Operator attempts to control credit risk by mitigating
credit exposures by underiaking transactions with a large number of counter parties in varicus industries and by
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk of the Operator arises principally from the deposit and placement with banks, investments, contribution due but
unpaid, amount due from other takaful / re-takaful operators, retakaful and other recoveries against outstanding claims,
accrued investment income and other receivables. To reduce the credit sk, Operator's management monitors exposure
to credit risk through its regular review, assessing credit worthiness of counter parties and prudent estimates of provision
for doubtful debts.

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

Note 2019 2018
- (Rupees in "000) --——

Cash and bank 12 105,374 2,176
Investments-term deposits 7 209,875 106,500
Investments-equity securities 6 88 80
Takaful / retakaful receivables 9 151,076 62,750
Accrued investment income 5,011 714
Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims 18 28,531 15,641

499,955 237,861

The Cperator did not hold any collateral against the above during the year.

The credit quality of the Operator's bank balances and deposits can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings
as follows:

2019 2018
Short term | | Long term || Agency Short term | | Long term [[ Agency
MCB Limited Al+ AAA PACRA Al+ AAA PACRA
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ VIS Al+ AA+ VIS
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA Al+ AA+ PACRA
Dubai Isiamic Bank Al+ AA VIS Al+ AA VIS
Standard Chartered Bank Al+ AA- PACRA At+ AA- PACRA
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Contribution due bul unpaid
Confribution due but unpald is mostly recoverable from corporate customers,

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk ocours when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business aclivities. As a resull,
any change in economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability lo meet contractual obligations In similar
manner. Sector-wise analysis of gross "coniribution due bul unpaid" (before charging of provision for impairment} at the
reporiing date was,

2019 2018
(Rupees m'000)| | % Rupeesin 000} | %
Texlile 6577 S% 8,368 28%
Financial services 4 780 &% 208 1%
Engineering 14,106 19% a7 0%
Pharmaceuticals 500 1% 737 2%
Food 11,265 16% 7,404 25%
Other manufacturing 2,961 4% 70 0%
Others 33,833 45% 13,293 44%
74,522 100% 30,174 100%
Age analysis of "contribution due bul unpaid” al the reporting data was:
2019 2018
Gross | | Impairment Gross | [Impairment
———(Rupees in "000}--—~ -—-—{Rupees in '000)
Upto 1 year 72,257 - 29,010 =
Upto 1 - 2 years 2,265 - 1,164 -

74,522 . 30174 .

Re-takaful ceded does nol relieve the Operalor from its obligation to paricipanis and as a result the Operator remains
liable for the portion of outstanding claims covered by re-lakaful to the extent that re-takaful falls to meel the obligation
under the re-takaful agreements.

In common with other takaful companies, In order 1o minimise Lhe financiai exposure arising from large claims, the
Operator, in the normal course of business, enters inio agreement with other re-takaful companies,

The Operator enters Into re-lakaful arrangements with re-takaful comparies having sound credit ratings accorded by
reputed credit rating agencies. The Operator is required to comply with the requirements of circular no. 32 / 2009 dated 27
October 2009 issued by SECP which requires a lakalul operator to place al least 80% of their outward treaty cessions with
re-takaful companies rated ‘A’ or above by Standard & Poor's or equivalent rating by any olher repuled inlernational raling
agency, with the balance (20%) being placed with entities raled at least 'BBE’ by Standard & Poor's or equivalent rating by
any other reputed international rating agency. An analysis of all re-takaful assels relating lo outward treaty cessions
recognised by tha rating of the entity from which it is due Is as follows:

2019
Re-takaful Pt
Amount due recoveries lfl'rah.ll
from re-takaful against coatibubo Total
operators oulztanding
claims
{Rupees in "000 )
A or above 13,763 34777 35,993 84 533
gBB 166 419 440 1,025
Others 122 6,565) 323 {6,220}

14,051 28.531 36,758 79.338
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2018
Re-takaful .
. Prepaid re-
Amount due recoveries
- takafui
from re-takaful against o Total
i utstandin contribution
operators oufstanding ceded
claims
{Rupees in '000)

A or above 31,025 15,014 24,723 70,762
BBB 731 354 582 1,667
Others 820 273 450 1,543

32,578 15,641 25,755 73,872
Age analysis of "Amount due from other takaful companies" at the reporting date was:

2019 2018
Gross | [Impairment Gross | [Impairment
--——(Rupees in '000)---r--= =—meee (Rupees in "000)------ -

Upto 1 year 69,079 - 31,710 -
Upto 1 - 2 years 7.214 - 866 -
Upto 2 - 3 years 261 - - -

76,554 - 32,576 -

In respect of the aforementioned takaful and re-takaful assets, the Operator takes into account its track record of
recoveries and financial position of the counterparties while creating provision for impairment. Further, re-takaful
recoveries are made when corresponding liabilities are settled.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Operator will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial cbligations as they fall due.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Operator could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected
or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Operator's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Operator's reputation. The diversified funding sources and assets of the Operator are managed with liquidity in
mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily marketable securities.

The table below analyses the Operator's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date on an undiscounted cash flow basis.

2019 2018
Camrying || Contractual Upto Over 6 Camying || Centractual Upto B Over §
amount cash flows months months to 4 amount cash flows months months to 4
year year
————- {Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) ~—-————e-
Financial liabilities-OPF
Takaful / retakaful payable 4,604 4,604 4,604 - 2,278 2.278 2,278 -
Other crediters and accruals 44 988 44,988 44,988 - 17,886 17,886 17,886 -
Accrued expenses 1,340 1,340 1,340 - 732 732 732
Payabte to PTF 32,286 32,286 32,286 - 28,144 28,144 28,144 -
83,218 83,218 83,218 - 49,040 49,040 49,040 -
Financial liabilities-PTF
Provision for outstanding claims
unearned re-takaful reward 112,475 112,475 112,475 - 52,075 52,075 52,075 -

Takaful f retakaful payable 128,817 128,817 128,817 - 66,077 66,077 66,077 -
Other creditors and accruals 54,130 54,130 54,130 - 51,152 51,152 51,152 -
Accrued expenses 1,691 1,691 1,691 - 916 916 916 -
Payable to OPF 127,605 127,605 127,605 - 45,181 45,181 45,181 -

_‘&]7[ 424,718 424,718 424,718 - 215401 215401 215,401 -

6 507,936 507,936 507,936 - 264,441 264,441 264 441 -
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as profit rales, foreign exchange rates and market prices. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due {o transactions in foreign currencies. As at reporting
date there are no financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies. Therefore, the Operator is not exposed o risk
from foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

Profit rate risk
Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

in market profit rates. Majority of the profit rate exposure arises from balances held in term deposits and banks with
reputable banks.

At the reporting dale, the profit rate profile of the Operator's significant profit-bearing financial instrument is:

2019
Profit bearing
Profit rate Maturity Maturity Non-profit Total
upto one after one Sub total bearing
year year
{Rupees In '00Q)
Financial assets
OPF
Cash and bank 5.5% -12.5% 15,217 - 15,217 - 15,217
Investments-term deposits 12% - 13.5% 20,500 - 20,500 - 20,500
Investments in equity securities - mutual funds - - - 44 44
Receivable from PTF - - - 187,605 187,605
Accryed investment income - - - 437 437
35717 - 35,717 188,086 223,803
!ﬂ‘
Cash and bank 5.5%-12.5% 90,157 - 90,157 - 90,157
Investments-term deposits 12% - 13.5% 189,375 - 189,375 - 189,375
Investments in equity securities - mutual funds - - - 44 44
Takaful / retakaful receivables - - - 151,076 151,076
Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims - - - 28,531 28,531
Receivable from OPF - - - 286 286
Accrued investment income - - - 4574 4 574
279,532 - 279,532 194,511 464,043
Financial liabilities
OPF
Takaful / retakaful payable - - - 4,604 4,604
Other creditors and acc¢ruals - - - 44,988 44,988
Accrued expenses - - - 1,340 1,340
Payable to PTF - - - 32,286 32,286
- - - 83,218 83,218
PTF
Provision for cutstanding claims (including IBNR) - - - 112,475 112,475
Takaful / retakaful payable - - - 128,817 128,817
QOther creditors and accruals - - - 54,130 54,130
Accrued expenses - - - 1,691 1,691
Payable to OPF - - - 127,605 127,605

- - - 424,718 424,718

&
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Profit bearing
Maturity Maturity Non-profit
Profit Rate upto one after one Sub total bearing Total
year year
{Rupees in '000)
Financial assets
OFPF
Cash and bank 5.50% - 5.75% 5,703 - 5,703 - 5,703
Investments-term deposits 10% 46,000 - 46,000 - 46,000
Investments in equity securities - mutual funds - - - 40 40
Receivable from PTF - - - 73,181 73,181
Accrued investment income - - - 283 283
51,703 - 51,703 73,504 125,207
_Fl";F-
Cash and bank 5.50% - 5.75% 46,348 - 46,348 125 46,473
Investments-term deposits 10% 60,500 - 60,500 - 60,500
Investments in equity securities - mutual funds - - - 40 40
Takaful / retakafut receivables - - - 62,750 62,750
Retakaful recoveries against ouistanding claims - - - 15,641 15,641
Receivable from OPF - - - 144 144
Accrued investment income - - - 431 431
106,848 - 106,848 78,131 185,979
Financial liabilities
QPE
Takaful / retakaful payable - - - 2,278 2,278
Other creditors and accruals - - - 17,886 17.886
Accrued expenses - - - 1,648 1,648
Payable to PTF - - - 73,325 73,325
- - - 49,301 49,301
EE
Provision for outstanding claims {including IBNR) - - - 52,075 52,075
Takaful / retakaful payable - - - 66,077 66,077
Other creditors and accruals - - - 51,152 51,152
Accrued expenses - - - 916 916
Payable to OPF - - - 45,181 45,181
- - - 215,401 215,401

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Operator is exposed to cash flow profit rate risk in respect of its term deposits receipts. In case of 100 basis points
(bp) increase / decrease in profit rates at period end, assuming that all other variables remain constant, the net income
and accumulated profit would have been higher / lower approximately by Rs 4,370 (2018: Rs 2,830) in Operators' fund.
Similarly, in case of Participants' Takaful Fund the net income and balance of Wagf / PTF would have been higher / lower
approximately by Rs 45,740 (2018: Rs. 4,310).

Price risk

Price risk is the risk of changes in the fair value of invesiments. The Operator is not exposed to price risk since it has no
investments in equity securities.

Capital Management
The Operalor's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Operator's ability {o continue as going concern so that
it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base

to supporit the sustained development of its businesses.

The Operator manages its fund structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions.

We,
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2019 2018
----- {Rupees in '000) «s-eeew
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY !
Financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assetls
Loans and receivables - amortised cost
Cash and bank 105,374 52,176
Investments-term deposits 209,875 106,500
Receivable from OPF / PTF 187,891 73,325
Takaful / retakaful receivables 151,076 62,750
Accrued investment income 5,011 714
Retakaful recoveries against outstanding
claims 28,531 15,641
687,758 311,106
Investments - fair value through profit or loss
Investments in equity securilies - mutual funds 88 80
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost
Provisicn for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 112,475 52,075
Takaful / retakaful payable 133,421 68,356
Other creditors and accruals 99,118 97,299
Accrued expenses 3,031 1,648
Payable to OPF 159,891 73,325
507,936 292,702

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value. The different levels have been defined as follows:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). The
Operator has no items to report in this level.

The Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

2019 2018
Level1 || Level2 || Level3 Level1 |[ Level2 |[ Level3
~ecesmceremeee (Rupees in '000)--—-— {Rupees in '000)———-———
Assets carried at fair value
tnvestmenl in equity securities

mutual funds - 88 - - 80 -
DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Operator on T Ve,

GENERAL

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees.

b}
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of IGI General Insurance Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance for Insurers, 2016

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016 (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of IGI General Insurance Limited (‘the
Company’} for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of Code of
Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 applicable to insurance companies as issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act,
2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s
length price or not.

Based con our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019.

rh{%fﬁ;r L

Chartered Accotintants
Dated: March 19, 2020
Karachi

A.F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, @ member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, L1 Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-740006, Pakistan
Tel: +02 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740,; <www.pwe.com/pk>

KARACHI » LAHORE = ISLAMABAD



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016

1G1 GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
for the year ended 31 December 2019

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 for the
purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby an insurer is managed in compliance with the
best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner;

1.

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing
minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

Category Names
Independent Director None
Executive Directors Mr. Chaudhry Tahir Masaud

Mr. Faisal Khan
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
Non-Executive Directors g;; giﬁiﬁfﬁe} r] g‘lrl

Mr. Syed Hasnain Ali

*As per clause (iii) of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016, the appointment of an independent
director on the Board is preferred but is not mandatory. Hence, no independent director has been appointed on the
Board of Directors of the Company.

2,

10.

11,

12,

13.

14.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed compantes,
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies in which each one of
them is a director)

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in
payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBF}, or being a member of stock exchange, has been
declared as a defaulter by a stock exchange.

During the year no casual vacancy occurred on the Board,

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct, which has been disseminated among all the directors and
employees of the Company.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant pclicies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief
Executive Officer, other executive directors and the key officers, have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings,
along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven (7} days before the meeting. The minutes
of the meeting were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemented at all levels
within the Company. The Company has adopted and complied with all the necessary aspects of intermal
controls given in the Code.

The Board was not required to arrange an orientation course during the year since there was no appointment
of new director,

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms & conditions of employment.

The Directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code of
Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finanecial
Officer before approval of the Board.

The directors, Chief Executive Officer and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code otL
Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. '

The Board has formed the following Management Committees:
UNDERWRITING, RE-INSURANCE & CO-INSURANCE COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Category
Syed Hyder Ali Chairman

Tahir Masaud Member

Faisal Khan Member

Syed Hasnain Ali Member

Sajjad Iftikhar Member

Jamshaid Hussain Member

Noman Bashir Member

Fawad Sarwar Member

CLAIM SETTLEMENT COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Category
Shamim Ahmad khan Chairman
Tahir Masaud Member
Syved Awais Amjad Member
Kashif Qayyum Member
Zahid Mehmood Member
RISK MANAGEMENT & COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
Name. of the Member Category
Shamim Ahmad khan Chairman
Tahir Masaud Member
Sajjad Iftikhar Member
Faisal Khan Member
Syed Awais Amjad Member
Saira Sheikh Member

The Board has formed the following Board Committees;

ETHICS, HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Category
Syed Hyder Ali Chairman
Syed Hasnain Ali Member
Tahir Masaud Member

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Category
Syed Hasnain Ali Chairman
 Syed Hyder Ali Member
Tahir Masaud Member
Sajiad Iftikhar Member
Sved Awais Amjad Member

The Board has formed an Audit Committee, It comprises of three (3) members, all of them are non-executive
directors. The chairman of the Committee is a non-executive director. The composition of the Audit Committee
is as follows: |

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Name of the Member Category
Sved Hasnain Ali Chairman
Syed Hyder Ali Member
Sajjad Iftikhar Member

The meetings of the Committees except Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee, were held at
least onice every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company and as required by the:
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. The terms of references of the Committees have been
formed and advised to the Committees for compliance.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. They are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and they are
involved in the internal audit function on a regular basis.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit possess

such qualification and experience as is required under the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.
The Appointed Actuary of the Company also meets the conditions as laid down in the said Code. Moreover, the
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22,

persons heading the underwntmg, claim, reinsurance, risk management and grievance departments possess|
qualification and experience of direct relevance to their respective functions, as required under section 12 of|
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000}):

Name of the Person Designation

Tahir Masaud Chief Executive Officer

Syed Awais Amjad Chief Financial Officer

Saira Shaikh Compliance Officer & Head of Grievance Department
Syed Muhammad Taha Nagvi Company Secretary®

Shahzeb Haider Head of Internal Audit

Jamshaid Hussain Head of Underwriting

Kashif Qayyum Head of Claims

Faisal Khan Head of Risk Management & Reinsurance

*Mr. Yasir Ali Quraishi, Company Secretary, resigned on November 27, 2019 and Syed Muhammad Taha Naqvl
has been appointed as Acting Company Secretary in his place subsequent to the year end.

The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved by the
Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. 33({IX of 2000). The
statutory auditors have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control
Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners
of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its
partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, ‘

23. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

24. The Appointed Actuary of the Company has confirmed that he or his spouse and minor children do not hold

25.

26.

27.

shares of the Company.

The Board ensures that the Appointed Actuary complies with the requirements set out for him in the Code df

Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the Company has been drawn up in accordance with tHe
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016,

The Board ensures that the risk management system of the Company is in place as per the requirement of th!e
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

28. The Company has set up a risk management function, which carries out its tasks as covered under the Code of

25.

30,

31.

Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the Company gets itself rated from JCR- VIIS
and PACRA which is being used by its risk management function and the respective Committee as a I"lSk
monitoring tool. The rating assigned by the said rating agencies on August 29, 2019 and December 6, 2019

are “AA" & “AA” respectively.

The Board has set up a grievance department / function, which fully complies with the requirements of tﬂe
Code of Corporate Governance for insurers, 2016.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers,

2016 have been complied with.

By Order of the Board

J Lt
Shamim Ahmad Khan
Date: March 05, 2020
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